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For the year ended 31t March, 2021, UBA Investments Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) recorded a loss attributable to owners
of approximately HK$8.7 million (2020: HK$44.5 million) of which
unrealised loss of HK$0.85 million (2020: unrealised loss HK$37.8
million) in relation to the listed securities and realised and unrealised
loss of HK$5.3 million and HK$2.1 million respectively (2020: unrealised
loss HK$4.1 million) in relation to the unlisted equity investment. The
loss per share was HK$0.0068 (2020: HK$0.035). Gross proceeds
from disposal of trading securities significantly decreased 85% from
HK$17.6 million to HK$2.6 million as the Group reduced the investment
proportion on trading listed securities under the uncertainty of economic
environment affected by COVID-19 pandemic during the period. In
order to minimize the potential loss generated in the highly volatile stock
markets under the COVID-19, the Group needs to be prudent and kept
those high vyield and blue chip listed securities in order to generate
dividend for operations and sufficient fund for the coming investment
opportunities. Therefore, it was not in line with the increasing transaction
volume of approximately 67% in Hang Seng Index (“HSI”) compared
with last year. As at 31t March, 2021, the net assets of the Group were
approximately HK$104.7million (2020: HK$113.4 million). The net assets
decreased by 7.7% when compared with last year, which is not in
line with the increase of 20% in HSI during this year mainly due to the
realised loss on disposal of unlisted equity investment amount HK$ 5.3
million and unrealised loss on unlisted equity investment amount HK2.1
million. In addition, it was because the increase of share price of those
high yield listed securities kept by the Group underperformed HSI.

During the corresponding period, the global and local equity markets
had experienced intense volatility. The Group’s proactive investment
strategy was to maximize profit for shareholders during the period,
through investment in listed securities with relatively high yield and
more stable, especially the bank and telecommunication sectors which
contributed 86% in dividend income in which all dividend income were
generated from listed securities investment during the year.

As at 31t March, 2021,
diversified and comprised of different sectors including bank,

the Group’s investment portfolio was well

telecommunications, transportation, retail businesses, properties,
manufacturing, construction etc, in which investment in listed securities
amounted HK$99.9 million (2020: HK$91.2 million) and unlisted
investment with fair value at amount HK$1.5 million (2020: HK$12.6
million) which match with the strategy of the Group. The significant
decrease of the unlisted investment was mainly due to one of the

unlisted investment was disposed during the year.

MEEERARAREMBLAR ([AEE]) &

E-T-—F=ZF=+-BEEL A£ER
RIEHEBAA8,700,0008 L (ZE-TF: 4
% 44,500,000 7T) « ERERNE LTESFHR
IR IR M B850,0008 T (ZE T F : k&
H BB 4 A37,800,0008 7T) i BIR IE LW AR
RIEEMERRAEREE D 5L A5,300,000
BT K%2,100,0008 T (ZE2FF : REBREE
4,100,000/ L) - B R E1E £0.0068% L (ZF
—TF: BEA003LET) c HERXBELME
HIBBTER AT RE417,600,00078 70 & F85%
Z#92,600,0005% 7T+ BX A 2 A & B %20197% ik
FEREBEEMNTREELEREHBTR
PHITESRGNBREERAB -MAAT
BAREEE D Z2019BRFESHEB TR
BUEREMSEENETERL  AEEERE
TE TREPZNEENEEEMES  UE
EERHANREBAEREEREL BRERD
REBSRUEANES - At - BEERERA
HEALCTRNZHENR - KERR T =—
E:ﬂ:+—az§§@EWﬁm4mowo

BT (ZZT-ZF : #5113,400,000/87T) °
é?f£¢ﬂ9%7mfﬁﬁiﬁ@hmm%

BELTEAF FERARLEELTREY

5,300,000 THEERIF LTHRENKRERE

E%mmmm%moEMt$El%ﬁmmw
BHEREARKRRBNEREME

EHRESRE  EREAHBRETSEET BN
KE) o N B HE MR R IR E R R AR FE
BAL TEBRENKSEERBEEEERS
MES  LEERTREARSE  KEXEEAR
FREHB6%HMBIA - TAHRE 2 RS WA
BHRE EHRAES

R-ZZE-—F=ZF=+—8 FA£EEZKEH
BB - ERRERT - BARE - RBE
B TE WE PEXRBEEFITRES -
B ETRR AR 25 49/599,900,0008 T (ZE =
TFE=[=+—H: £91,200,000%7T) RIEQ
FEZIEETRELNA1,500,0008TL (ZE=F
F=ZF=+—H: #12,600,000&7T) * IR
AAREEZKRERH - FEMREANBALHE
EREARAGFEEET —HFLMERE -



The strategy of the Group in short term is to trade listed securities
depending on the market sentiment and to maintain sufficient dividend
level for the Group operation. For the long term strategy, it is to balance
the listed and unlisted investment so as to bring better returns for our
shareholders and to maintain sufficient liquidity for the future actions
when fluctuation in stock markets and investing in unlisted investment
may have higher potentials. In addition, the Group would conduct
further review on acquisition of the unlisted equity investment from time
to time in the future.

During the corresponding year, the trend of the stock markets were
similar between United States (“U.S.”), China and Hong Kong. All these
equity markets had experienced an uptrend. It was mainly due to the
effect of the fiscal stimulus in U.S. and China and the release of the
COVID-19 vaccines around the world bringing economies back from
the brink and led the economic recovery and bull market in stocks was
born.

The negative impact of elevated uncertainty surrounding the COVID-19
pandemic was carrying over from last period along with surging
COVID infections in the world, which led to a depressing economy in
U.S. and European countries in the beginning of second quarter of
2020. However, the U.S. Federal Reserve (the “Fed”) indicated that
interest rates would remain nearly 0% throughout 2022. In addition, the
Fed initiated Quantitative Easing (the “QE”) and the State purchased
unlimited amount of Treasury securities and agency mortgage-backed-
securities together with the US$ 1.9 trillion American Rescue Plan
announced by the New U.S. President Joe Biden, which include at least
400 billion US dollars to solve the COVID crisis by expanding the scope
of testing and COVID vaccination, etc, which stimulated the equity
markets. Together with the good economic data, such as reduction in
unemployment rate and improvement in PMI, and most important is the
release of COVID-19 vaccines during the year brought positive market
sentiment to the investors and drove the U.S. economy and stimulated
the U.S. stock markets during the year. The Dow Jones Index increased
sharply by approximately 50% from 21,917 at the end of March 2020 to
32,981 at the end of March 2021.
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Meanwhile, the China stock markets sentiment had experienced an
uptrend which was similar to U.S. and Europe during the year as the
epidemic of COVID-19 started to ease in China, especially after the
release of the COVID-19 vaccines during the year. In addition, the
Chinese Government announced a series of stabilized policies to
stimulate economy, especially after the announcement of the Fourteenth
Five-Year Plan for National Economic and Social Development in which
the Chinese Government will focus on the new generation of information
technology, biotechnology, new energy, new materials, high-end
equipment, etc (“new economy business”) which lead to increase in
the prospects and confidence in new economy business companies.
Together with the good economic data just like the uptrend of the Caixin
China Manufacturing Purchasing Managers Index (“PMI”) from April
2020 at 49.4 to 50.6 at the end of March 2021 and the increase in the
valuation of the RMB against USD by approximately 8% during the year.
In addition, the GDP had significant improvement as the first quarter
2021 increased 18.3% comparing with last corresponding period. The
Shanghai Composite Index increased approximately 25% from 2,750 at
the end of March 2020 to 3,441 at the end of March 2021.

Back to the Hong Kong Stock Markets, which were highly sensitive to
the news of the global economy, especially the negative impact from
COVID-19 pandemic and U.S. executive order to abolish the preferential
tariff rates for exports to United States from Hong Kong in June 2020.
However, the positive impact from QE of U.S., Chinese economic
stimulate policy and the release of COVID-19 vaccines during the year
outweighed the negative impact. As a result, the HSI also increase
significantly approximately 20% from 23,603 at the end of March 2020
to 28,378 at the end of March 2021.

Notwithstanding positive impacts the year, we expect global economy
will be full of challenges in the coming few months even though
benefiting from the rebound economics in U.S., Europe and PRC, low
interest rate environment worldwide and the release of the COVID -19
vaccines, which may enhance the investment desire and confidence
of investors around the world and keep the global stock markets
flourishing. On the flip side, we also remain cautious of the impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic outbreak seriously in other backward countries
which may bring negative effect toward the global economics.

Due to these reasons, the Group remains cautiously optimistic about
the outlook of the global as well as Hong Kong equity markets. We may
consider investing in more relatively high yield listed securities and
maintain sufficient liquidity for future investment opportunities to enrich
our investment portfolios. We will also continue to adopt and maintain
a cautious and pragmatic investment approach in order to bring better
returns for our shareholders.
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The Group hold lot of listed investment and one unlisted investment WHZZ—
at fair value as at the year ended 315 March, 2021. The top ten listed
equity investment and the unlisted equity investment represented
significant portion in the net assets of the Group as at the year ended

31t March, 2021 as below:

Listed securities investment

Name of investee companies

RELNAER

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 0001)
RINZEXERA (REES  0001)

PCCW Limited (Stock Code: 0008)
EANANBRAR (REFH : 0008)

MTR Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 0066)
EREBRER LA (RERES - 0066)

i-Control Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1402)
BEEERERAR (REHT - 1402)

JBB Builders International Limited
(Stock Code: 1903)

JBB Builders International Limited
(REH5: - 1903)

Bank of Communications Co., Limited
(Stock Code: 3328)
RREBARHER DB (REHS  3328)

—FZA=1t—R FrEERERZL
MRAE SR —HEAFENFLTRARE -
TALIBRABSZRF LMRER T _—F=
A=T—RIMEAGBEREBETHDEENLE

BERMT
LtTRAESRE
As at 31%tMarch, 2021 As at 31%March, 2020
RZBZ-5=ZB=1-H R-ZZ-ZF=A=+—-H
Approximately Approximately
% of total % of total
Number of assets of Number of assets of
share Fair Value the Group share Fair Value the Group
hAEEAEE ErEBREE
R #E AVE ZBOL bant RFHE B
HK$000 HK$'000
TET TET
50,000 3,098 2.95% 40,000 2,092 1.84%
5,800,265 25,405 24.19% 5,800,265 24,767 21.74%
183,775 8,094 7.11% 178,000 7,129 6.26%
6,000,000 3,300 3.14% = - -
4,644,000 2,786 2.65% 4,644,000 2,740 2.40%
1,200,000 5,940 5.65% 1,000,000 4,750 417%



B Uc~ INVESTMENTS LIMITED BBRESRA T

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEENWED T
As at 31%March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020
RZE--%=A=t+-H RZZZZF=A=+—H
Approximately Approximately
% of total % of total
Number of assets of Number of assets of
Name of investee companies share Fair Value the Group share Fair Value the Group
HAEEREE HASEBEE
REDAERE R4 #E NFE ZBAH e AYE ZEDY
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FHET
Bank of China Limited (Stock Code: 3988) 4,600,000 13,616 12.96% 4,600,000 13,662 11.99%
RERTRHBEAF (REHS - 3988)
Gemilang International Limited 4,791,250 4,312 4.11% 4,791,250 5,989 5.26%
(Stock Code: 6163)
ZIREIBRER AR (REHER - 6163)
Kwong Man Kee Group Limited 30,003,000 12,751 12.14% 30,003,000 14,101 12.38%
(Stock Code: 8023)
BYXZEEERAR (REHY - 8023)
Shen You Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8377) 16,852,711 7,752 7.38% - = =
RERRERAT (RZET : 8377)
87,054 82.88% 75,230 66.04%




A brief description of the business, financial performance and prospect
of the Listed securities investment is as follows:

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CKH Holdings”)
CKH Holdings is incorporated in Cayman lIslands and is
principally engaged in ports and related services, retail,

infrastructure, energy and telecommunication industries.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended
2020, CKH Holdings recorded revenue of
approximately HK$266,396 million,

31st December,
total comprehensive
income of approximately HK$54,715 million and net assets of
approximately HK$630,063 million.

On a Pre-IFRS 16 basis, EBITDA and EBIT decreased 13%
and 24% respectively against last year, primarily reflecting
the adverse full year performances due to the pandemic.
Comparing against the first half of the year, excluding the
one-time transactional gains, as well as the share of Husky's
impairment and other charges, all operations have seen some
recovery in the second half, with the overall underlying EBITDA
and EBIT increasing 38% and 65% respectively against the first
six months of 2020. Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
for 2020 of HK$29,000 million, a decrease of 27% compared
to 2019. On a Post-IFRS 16 basis, profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of HK$29,143 million decreased by 27% from
2019. Earnings per share were HK$7.56 for the year ended
315t December, 2020, a decrease of 27%.

The Group concurs with that CKH Holdings believes that, in
2021, CKH Holdings will continue to react nimbly to changing
business conditions, which will likely be similar to the second
half of 2020, while continuing to prioritise health and safety
for employees and customers and preserving strong balance
sheet and liquidity. CKH Holdings’ year end net debt to net
total capital ratio of 22.2% is expected to be further reduced
following the various transactions completing in 2021. CKH
Holdings is in a strong financial position and expects solid
performance in 2021. Therefore, the Group holds 50,000 shares
in CKH Holdings, representing 0.001% interest in the issued
share capital of CKH Holdings based on the annual report at
31t December, 2020, and derived a dividend income of
HK$122,000 for the year ended 31t March, 2021.
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PCCW Limited (“PCCW”)

PCCW is incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally
engaged in telecommunications, media, IT solutions, property
development and investment, and other business.

Pursuant to the report for the year ended 31t December,
2020, PCCW recorded revenue of approximately HK$38,046
million, total comprehensive income of approximately HK$674
million and net assets of approximately HK$13,554 million.
PCCW recorded a steady performance for the year ended
31t December, 2020, even as the COVID-19 pandemic persisted
throughout the year and severely disrupted normal economic
activity and life around the world.

The Group believes that, the economic outlook in 2021 for
Hong Kong and the world is clouded by the pandemic and
external factors including persistent tensions between China
and the US. But with PCCW established local leadership and
strong regional presence, PCCW are determined to continue
deploying technology, creativity and innovation to support
customer needs under the new normal and in the post-pandemic
recovery. Therefore, the Group holds 5,800,265 shares in PCCW,
representing 0.075% interest in the issued share capital of
PCCW based on the annual report at 31t December, 2020 and
derived a dividend income of HK$1,855,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2021.

MTR Corporation Limited (“MTR”)

MTR is incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally engaged
in provision in the following businesses - railway design,
construction, operation, maintenance and investment in Hong
Kong, the Mainland of China and a number of major overseas
cities.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31% December,
2020, MTR recorded total revenue of approximately HK$42,541
million, net loss of approximately HK$4,809 million and net
assets of approximately HK$176,981 million. The financial
results were affected by the significant impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. Loss arising from recurrent businesses for the year
was HK$1,126 million. Property development profit for the year
decreased by 1.3% to HK$5,507 million. As a result, profit
arising from underlying businesses decreased by 58.5% to
HK$4,381 million.
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The Group believes that while in the near terms economic
outlook remains challenging, MTR has reasons to be optimistic
about their medium to long-term future. Despite the fact that
businesses suffered to varying degrees in 2020, MTR is in a
solid financial position, and they continue to drive a number of
projects and developments that offer strong potential. Therefore,
the Group holds 183,775 shares in MTR, representing 0.003%
interest in the issued share capital of MTR based on the annual
report at 31 December, 2020. No dividend was received during
the year.

i-Control Holdings Limited (“i-Control”)

i-Control is incorporated in Cayman lIslands and is principally
engaged in provision of video conferencing and multimedia
audiovisual solution (“VCMA”) and related system integration
services in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the interim report for the six months ended 30"
September, 2020, i-Control recorded revenue of approximately
HK$75 million, total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$9 million and net assets of approximately HK$142 million.
Profit for the period increased from approximately HK$1,130,000
for the six months ended 30" September, 2019 to approximately
HK$9,495,000 for the six months ended 30" September, 2020,
which was mainly due to the decreased in gross operating
profit net off with the effect of (i) no non-recurring transfer
listing expenses incurred in relation to the transfer of listing
during the period; (ii) decrease in income tax expenses; and
(iii) subsidy from employment Support Scheme of approximately
HK$2,312,000. Excluding the subsidy from Employment Support
Scheme, i-Control’s adjusted profit for the period would be
approximately HK$7,183,000.

The Group concurs with i-Control will continue to closely
monitor the development of COVID-19 and new precautionary
measures and evaluate the policies of the i-Control to minimize
the epidemic’s impact on the business of i-Control. Meanwhile,
i-Control will seize business opportunities with gradual relaxation
in anti-epidemic measures and continue to seek and explore
new opportunities to expand the i-Control's business in order
to support long-term development of i-Control. Therefore,
the Group holds 6,000,000 shares in i-Control, representing
0.6% interest in the issued share capital of i-Control based on
interim report ended at 30" September, 2020 and derived a
dividend income of approximately HK$26,000 for the year ended
31st March, 2021.
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JBB Builders International Limited (“JBBI”)

JBBI is incorporated in Cayman Islands. It is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the provision of marine construction services and building and
infrastructure services.

Pursuant to the interim report ended 31t December, 2020,
JBBI recorded revenue of approximately RM34.6 million, total
comprehensive loss of approximately RM8 million and net
assets of approximately RM128 million. Revenue decreased
by approximately RM56.7 million or 62.1% from approximately
RM91.3 million for the six months ended 31t December, 2019
to approximately RM34.6 million for the six months ended
31t December, 2020. The substantial decline in revenue is
mainly attributable to (i) the reduction in volume of work for
marine construction services and building and infrastructure
services following the completion of certain key contracts which
contributed to a substantial portion of the revenue for the six
months ended 31t December, 2019; and (ii) the suspension of
the JBBI's ongoing contracts, postponement of the scheduled
construction works and further delay in the commencement of
new contracts secured in earlier periods due to the long lasting
COVID-19 OQutbreak and the enforcement of the conditional
Restriction of Movement Order by Malaysia government.

The Group concurs with JBBI continue to leverage the
advantageous financial position of JBBI and to explore new
business opportunities in Malaysia, Singapore and Hong Kong
and at the same time strengthen JBBI presence and market
position in marine construction and building and infrastructure
services industry. Therefore, the Group holds 4,644,000 shares
in JBBI, representing 0.93% interest in the issued share capital
of JBBI based on the interim report ended 31t December, 2020.
No dividend was received during the year.
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Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. (“Bank Com.”)
Bank Com. is incorporated in the PRC and is principally
engaged in provision of banking and related financial services.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31¢ December,
2020, Bank Com. recorded profit of approximately RMB79,570
million, total comprehensive income of approximately RMB
71,021 million and net assets of approximately RMB878,628
million. During the period, Bank Com. realised a profit
attributable to shareholders of Bank Com. of approximately
RMB78,274 million, an increase of approximately 1.28%
compared with prior year. Return on average total assets
("ROA”) was 0.77% and return on average equity (“ROE”) was
11.35%.

The Group concurs with Bank Com. believes that, looking
forward into 2021, the international economic situation will
remain complex and challenging, and the global economy
recovery is still going to be tottering, but the fundamentals
of China’s long-term economic development remain positive.
The pandemic prevention and control results will continue to
consolidate, and the macro policies will remain their continuity,
stability and sustainability. The implementation of policy would
be more targeted and effective. Overall, during 2021 and
the period of the “14" Five-Year Plan” , the banking industry
will switch from rapid growth to a new phase of high-quality
development, with opportunities going together with challenges.
Therefore, the Group holds 1,200,000 shares in Bank Com.,
representing 0.002% interest in the issued share capital of Bank
Com. based on the annual report at 31 December, 2020 and
derived a dividend income of HK$381,000 for the year ended
31t March, 2021.
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Bank of China Limited (“BOC”)

BOC is incorporated in the PRC and is principally engaged in
provision a full range of corporate banking, personal banking,
treasury operations, investment banking, insurance and other
services to its customers in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong,
Macau, Taiwan and other major international financial centres.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31t December,
2020, BOC recorded profit of approximately RMB205,096 million,
total comprehensive income of approximately RMB182,234
million and net assets of RMB2,162,837 million. BOC realised
a profit attributable to equity Holders of RMB192,870 million, a
year-on-year increase of 2.92%. Return on average total assets
(“ROA”) was 0.87%, and return on average equity (“ROE”) was
10.61%.

The Group concurs with BOC believes that, in 2021, the banking
industry will face a complicated operating environment. From
an international perspective, the world economic situation
remains complication and grim. The global economic recovery
is expected to be unstable and uneven, and the potential risks
caused by COVID-19 pandemic should not be ignored. From
a domestic perspective, China’s economy is in good condition
from a long-term perspective, with the new development pattern
being built at an accelerating pace and endogenous capacity
gradually improving. Therefore, the Group holds 4,600,000
shares in BOC, representing 0.002% interest in the issued share
capital of BOC based on the annual report at 31t December,
2020 and derived a dividend income of HK$861,000 for the year
ended 31% March, 2021.
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Gemilang International Limited (“Gemilang”)

Gemilang is incorporated in Cayman Islands and is principally
engaged in design and manufacture bus bodies and assemble
buses and have over 25 years of track record in the industry.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31¢ October,
2020, Gemilang recorded revenue of approximately US$31
million, total comprehensive income of approximately US$0.3
million and net assets of approximately US$20 million.
Gemilang recorded a revenue of approximately US$31 million,
representing a significant decrease of approximately 50.68%
from approximately US$63 million in the financial year ended 319
October, 2019. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to
the decrease in the delivery of bus bodies to Singapore and the
United Arab Emirates during the year as compared to the year
ended 31¢ October, 2019.

The Group believes that Gemilang objective is to become one
of the leading bus manufacturing solution providers in Asia.
Gemilang believes the Asia market has a lot of growth potential
as countries continue to urbanise with a growth population
and bus is a convenient and cost efficient form of public
transportation that can be implemented in many areas. Gemilang
believes they are well positioned and equipped with the
technological capability to capture this opportunity. Therefore,
the Group holds 4,791,250 shares in Gemilang, representing
1.906% interest in the issued share capital of Gemilang based
on the annual report at 31t October, 2020. No dividend was
received during the year.

Kwong Man Kee Group Limited (“KMK”)

KMK is incorporated in Cayman lIslands and is principally
engaged in provision of engineering services in flooring,
screeding, anti-skid surfacing and concrete repairing.

Pursuant to the interim report ended 30" September, 2020, KMK
recorded revenue of approximately HK$64 million, and total
comprehensive income of approximately HK$11 million and net
assets of approximately HK$96 million. During the period, the
increase of revenue was mainly driven by the increase in the
number of projects undertaken by KMK during the six months
ended 30" September, 2020.
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10.

The Group concurs with KMK believes that, in light of the
prevailing market and economic uncertainty (in particular, the
impact of COVID-19 pandemic) and the keen competition in
car park flooring market, KMK will continue to strengthen its
market position and income stream by focusing on the following
business strategies: (i) explore any new opportunities to diversify
its business; (ii) keep track of any new construction projects
and refurbishment projects in car park flooring markets in Hong
Kong and Macau; (iii) expand the business in ancillary service,
i.e. specialized texture painting and waterproofing works; and
(iv) take measures to control the operating cost, such as the
labour and material costs, as well as general administrative
expenses. Therefore, the Group holds 30,003,000 shares in
KMK, representing 5% interest in the issued share capital of
KMK based on the interim report at 30" September, 2020. No
dividend was received during the year.

Shen You Holdings Limited (“Shen You”)
Shen You is incorporated in Cayman Islands and is principally
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sewing threads and

broad categories of garment accessories.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31% December,
2020, Shen You recorded revenue of approximately HK$45
million, total comprehensive loss of approximately HK$12 million
and net assets of approximately HK$46 million. Shen You's
net loss decreased to approximately HK$15.6 million for the
year ended 31% December, 2020 from approximately HK$19.2
million for the year ended 31t December, 2019, representing
a decrease of approximately 18.9%. Such decrease in net loss
was mainly due to the decrease in impairment losses on financial
assets of approximately HK$3.0 million and decreased in the
finance cost of approximately HK$0.9 million during the year
ended 31t December, 2020.

The Group believes that Shen You would continue to review the
existing businesses from time to time with a view to improving
the business operation and financial position of Shen You. Shen
You is in the course of feasibility study to invest in new business
related to quality thoroughbred, acquire the horse racing and
breeding operations.
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Therefore, the Group entered into and completed a sales
and purchase agreement with Shen You to sell one of the
Group unlisted investment Diamond Motto for an aggregate of
16,852,711 of Shen You shares as consideration during the year.
The Group holds 16,852,711 shares in Shen You, representing
4.74% interest in the issued share capital of Shen You after the
completion of the above transaction on 9" February, 2021. No
dividend was received during the year.

Unlisted equity investment
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A brief description of the business, financial performance and
prospect of the unlisted securities investment is as follows:

1. Guangdong Jingyeng Aquaculture Company Limited
(“dingyeng Aquaculture”)
Jingyeng Aquaculture is incorporated in The People’s
Republic of China and is principally engaged in business
of aquaculture and feed production during the year.

Pursuant to the annual report for the year ended 31¢
December, 2020, Jingyeng Aquaculture recorded net
profit was approximately RMB3.4 million and net assets
of approximately RMB218 million. Jingyeng Aquaculture’s
net profit margin for the year was about 1.94%.
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The Group believes that there will be steady growth in
aquaculture and feed production business in China and
it is beneficial to Jingyeng Aquaculture. Therefore, the
Group holds 1.6% interest in the issued share capital of
Jingyeng Aquaculture. No dividend was derived during
the year. The net assets attributable to the Group was
approximately HK$4,130,000 (2020: HK$$3,748,000).

Diamond Motto Limited (“Diamond Motto”)

On 18" August, 2020, the Group entered into a sales
and purchase agreement with Shen You, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with
stock code 8377. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group
together with three other Vendors sold the entire interests
in the issued share capital of and loans due from
Diamond Motto for an aggregate stated consideration of
HK$14,500,000, by way of an aggregate of 67,441,860
consolidated shares, representing HK$0.215 per share.
The Group agreed to sell its entire shares, representing
approximately 16.67% of the entire issued share capital
of Diamond Motto, and the amount due from Diamond
Motto for a stated consideration of HK$3,623,333, which
was satisfied by Shen You by way of allotting and issuing
an aggregate of 16,852,711 consolidated shares of
HK$0.05 each in the issued share capital of Shen You.
On 2" February, 2021, an Extraordinary General Meeting
(“EGM”) of Shen You was held and the shareholders of
Shen You approved the sales and purchase transaction
and the allotment and issuance of its shares as
consideration, and completion of the transaction took
place on 9" February, 2021. Being the date of completion
on 9" February, 2021, the market value of Shen You's
shares was approximately HK$6,404,000. The total of
the carrying amount of Diamond Motto (HK$9,105,000)
and the gross carrying amount of the amount due from
Diamond Motto (HK$2,590,000) were approximately
HK$11,695,000. Therefore, the Group recognized a loss
on disposal amount approximately HK$5,291,000 during
the year.
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In addition, the net realised and unrealised gain/(loss) on

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for the

year ended 315 March, 2021 amounted to approximately

HK$8.2 million was mainly due to the listed and unlisted

investment and the relevant breakdown are as follows:

Name of investee companies

Listed investment
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Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31t March, 2021, the Group had bank balances and cash
of approximately HK$1,772,000 (2020: HK$5,745,000). The Board
believes that the Group has sufficient financial resources to satisfy its
commitments and working capital requirements.

As at 31stMarch, 2021, none of listed equity securities of the Group had
been pledged to secure margin facilities and loans granted by a related
company.

Gearing ratio
Gearing ratio had not been presented (2020: HK$ nil) as there was no
debt as at 31! March, 2021 (2020: HK$ nil).

Dividend
The Board has resolved not to recommend any payment of final
dividend.

Capital structure
There was no change to the Group’s capital structure for the year ended
31t March, 2021.

Capital commitment and contingent liabilities
As at 31%'March, 2021, the Group had no material capital commitment
and contingent liabilities.

Material Acquisition and Disposal
During the Year, the Group had not made any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.

Exposure to foreign currency fluctuation and related hedges

The Board believes that the foreign exchange risk is minimal as
the Group mainly uses Hong Kong dollars to carry out its business
transactions. Therefore, there was no material foreign exchange
exposure to the Group.

Employment and remuneration policies
As at 31t March, 2021,
employees (2020: 3), including the executive directors of the Group.

the Group employed a total of 3 full-time

Employees’ remuneration are fixed and determined with reference to the
market rate.

Share options
The Company does not have share option scheme.
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The Annual General Meeting (the “AGM”) will be convened on Friday,
20" August, 2021. The notice of AGM will be published on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange and sent to the shareholders
of the Company and together with the Company’s 2021 Annual Report in
due course.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday,
17" August, 2021 to Friday, 20" August, 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company (“Shares”)
will be registered. In order to determine the identity of shareholders
of the Company who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all
Share transfers accompanied by the relevant Share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor
Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 16" August, 2020.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“CG Code”) throughout the year
ended 31%t March, 2021, except for the followings.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. None of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company were appointed
for a specific term. None of the non-executive directors has entered
or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company or
its subsidiaries. But all directors of the Company are subject to the
retirement by rotation according to the provisions under article 157
of the Articles of Association of the Company. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company's corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code.
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
The independent non-executive director, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald
was unable to attend the AGM on 14" August, 2020 due to his other
business engagements. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.6.7 of the CG Code. Moreover, non-attendance of this independent
non-executive director may also constitute deviation from code
provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Despite of that independent non-
executive director, all the other directors of the Company were present
in the AGM.

The Board would like to take this opportunity to extend our sincere
thanks and express appreciation to those who have supported us
during the year.

By order of the Board
WONG Yun Kuen
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22" June, 2021
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Dr. WONG Yun Kuen (“Dr. Wong”), aged 63, is an executive director
of the Company. He has been elected as Chairman of the Board on 30"
April, 2015. He received a Ph.D. Degree from Harvard University, and
was “Distinguished Visiting Scholar” at Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania. Dr. Wong has worked in financial industries in the
United States and Hong Kong for many years, and has considerable
experience in corporate finance, investment and derivative products.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Dr. Wong is
independent non-executive director of Kaisun Energy Group Limited
(Stock Code: 8203) and GT Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
263). Dr. Wong was chairman and executive director of Far East
Holdings International Limited (Stock Code: 36) (July 2017 to December
2020), executive director of Boill Healthcare Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1246) (July 2016 to December 2018), non-executive director of
China Sandi Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 910) (September 2016 to
September 2019) and the independent non-executive director of DeTai
New Energy Group Limited (Stock Code: 559) (July 2009 to December
2020), Synergis Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 2340) (December 2017
to December 2020). China Graphene Group Limited (Stock Code: 63)
(June 2020 to December 2020) and Kingston Financial Group Limited
(Stock Code: 1031) (June 2005 to August 2019). All are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was also independent non-executive
director of Asia Coal Limited (Stock Code: 835) (September 2018 to
June 2019) and Tech Pro Technology Limited (Stock Code: 3823)
(September 2017 to March 2020), the shares of which were delisted
with effect from 18" June 2019 and 2" March 2020 respectively. Save
as disclosed above, Dr. Wong does not hold directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew (“Mr. Cheng”), aged 48, is an executive
director, member of the remuneration committee and member of the
nomination committee of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s degree
from the California State University, USA. He has over 20 years
experience in securities, corporate finance and direct investment. He is
also an executive director of Upbest Group Limited (Stock Code: 335).
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng does not hold directorship in other
public companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan (“Mr. Chan”), aged 54, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, Chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company, Mr. Chan holds two master degrees in Practising Accounting
and Business Law from Monash University, Australia, Professionally, he
is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
CPA Australia, the Chartered Governance Institute in UK, The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and is an ordinary member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, a member of Chartered Institute of Logistics and
Transport in Hong Kong. He is also admitted to Certified Membership
of The Institute of Certified Management Accountants of Australia, and
a member of the Chartered Bankers Institute in UK with a designation
of “Chartered Banker”, “Certified Banker” of The Hong Kong Institute
of Bankers, “Chartered Secretary” and “Chartered Governance
Professional” of The Chartered Governance Institute in UK. Currently,
he is a standing member and convenor of Hong Kong members of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Yunfu City of
Guangdong Province, standing member of Guangdong’'s Association
for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong, Hong Kong &
Macau, member of China Overseas Friendship Association, member of
Friends of Hong Kong Association, co-sponsor of Hong Kong Coalition,
secretary general of China Hong Kong and Macau Boundary Crossing
Bus Association, and member of The Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Director Association (HKINED) Mr. Chan was also appointed
as member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue) of HKSAR from
2009-2011. Currently, he is the Managing Director of a transportation
company which is a subsidiary of a listed company. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
of the Upbest Group Limited (Stock Code: 335), an Independent
Non-Executive Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of China
Resources Mixc Lifestyle Services Limited (Stock Code: 1209). Other
than disclosed above, Mr. Chan holds no directorship in other public
companies listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas
now or in the past three years.

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung (“Dr. Fung”), aged 60, is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
He has been the honorary medical adviser of the Institute of Securities
Dealers Limited since 2000 and the Hong Kong Chamber of Small &
Medium Business Limited since 1997. Dr. Fung is an affiliated fellow
of the Royal Australian College of Physicians and the foundation fellow
of Hong Kong Academy of Medicine. In addition, he is a member of
the International Society of Nephrology and Hong Kong Society of
Nephrology. He also holds a master’s degree in business administration
from the Newport University in the United States. Save as disclosed
above, Dr. Fung does not hold directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the past three years.
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Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald (“Mr. Tang”), aged 62, is an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Tang received his legal education from the University of Hong
Kong and has been a barrister in private practice since 1981. Save as
disclosed above, Mr. Tang has not held any directorship in other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai (“Mr. Kwok”), aged 56, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company with effect from 1t December, 2019. Mr.
Kwok possesses over 20 years of experience in banking, finance
and accounting and held executive positions at several international
financial institutions, accounting firm and listed companies. Mr. Kwok
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Accounting and Financial Management
and Economics from the University of Sheffield in the United Kingdom
and a Master Degree in Business Administration from the University of
Adelaide in Australia. He is a member of CPA Australia and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr.
Kwok was an independent non-executive director of DT Capital Limited
(Stock code: 356) from September 2007 to July 2019. Mr. Kwok was
an executive director of Zhongda International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 909), (November 2006 to March 2019) the shares of which
were delisted with effect from 8" March 2019. Mr. Kwok was also an
executive director of On Real International Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 8245) (August 2016 to September 2019). Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Kwok does not hold directorship in other public companies
the securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the past three years.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of UBA Investments Limited (the
“Company”) has pleasure in presenting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31¢ March, 2021.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are investment holding companies.

A fair review of the business and the outlook of the Company and a
discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position are
provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 4 to 23
of this annual report. These discussion form part of this director’s report.

Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Company
can be found throughout this annual report particularly in note 8 on the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental policies and performance are discussed in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” from pages 56 to 68 of
this annual report.

The Group’s turnover and contribution to operating results were all
derived from investment in listed and unlisted securities in Hong Kong.

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment are set out in note 17 on the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March, 2021 are set out in
note 29 on the consolidated financial statements.

The Company does not have share option scheme.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee annually.
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The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2021 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 76 respectively.

The Board has resolved not to recommend a payment of final dividend.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 24 on the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out below. This summary is not part
of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS
1/4/2020 -
31/3/2021
HK$°000
FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (B1B) /& H (8,889)
Taxation I 191
Net (loss)/profit attributable RAREBAER
to owners of the Company (EB#8)/&HMFE (8,698)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EEHEE
31/3/2021
HK$°000
FET
Total assets BEHSE 105,033
Total liabilities BEEE (347)

Net assets BEFE 104,686
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1/4/2019 - 1/4/2018 - 1/4/2017 - 1/4/2016 -
31/3/2020  31/3/2019  31/3/2018  31/3/2017

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR FAT T FAET

(45,004)  (24,436)  (19,680) 4,829
489 1,154 (1,812) -
(44515)  (23,282)  (21,492) 4,829

31/3/2020  31/3/2019  31/3/2018  31/3/2017

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

113,933 158,933 148,536 173,040
(549) (1,034) (2,171) (2,163)

113,384 157,899 146,365 170,877



Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity and note
28 on the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the share
premium, contributed surplus and retained profits under the Companies
Law of the Cayman lIslands. The share premium of the Company is
available for paying dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividend the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can
be distributed out of the share premium, contributed surplus and retained
profits of the Company which in aggregate amounted to approximately
HK$89,220,000 (2020: HK$92,312,000) as at 31t March, 2021.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries repurchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

The Company has adopted an investment objectives, investment
policies and investment restrictions which has not been changed since
its listing in 2000 in the Stock Exchange and summaries are as below:

Investment objectives and policies

The Company is an investment company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with the primary objective of achieving medium term capital
appreciation by investing in listed and unlisted companies in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Company also intends to invest in unlisted
companies with the potential to seek a listing on the Stock Exchange or
any overseas stock exchanges.

The Company has adopted the following investment policies:

o Investment will normally be made in the form of equity or equity-
related securities and debt instruments in listed and unlisted
companies engaged in industries including (but not limited to)
the information technology, telecommunications, manufacturing,
service, property and infrastructure sectors to maintain a
balance in the Company’s exposure to different industry sectors
in order to minimize the impact on the Company of any downturn
in any particular sector;
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o The Company will seek to identify entities with a record of
profit growth, strong management, high levels of technical
expertise and research and development capabilities as well
as management commitment to the long term growth. However,
the Company is flexible in considering investment in companies
or other entities which are considered by the Board and the
Investment Manager as being special or in recovery situations;

o Where possible, the Board and the investment manager would
seek to identify investment where there is a certain degree of
synergy with other investee companies and where co-operation
between such companies would be of mutual benefit to each
other; and

o The Company’s investment are intended to be held for medium
term capital growth. There is no present intention to realize any
of such investment in any specific period or by any specific
date. Nevertheless, the directors of the Company (the “Director”)
will from time to time realize investment where they believe the
realization would be in the best interests of the Company or
where the terms on which such realization can be achieved are
believed by the Directors to be particularly favourable to the
Company.

Investment restrictions

Under the Articles and the Listing Rules relating to the listing of
investment companies, certain restrictions on investment are imposed
on the Company. In part to meet such restrictions, the Board has
resolved that the Company may not:

1. either itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries or in
conjunction with any connected person take legal, or effective,
management control of underlying investment and in no event,
will the Company itself or through its wholly-owned subsidiaries
own or control more than 30%, (or such lower percentage as
may from time to time be specified in the Takeover Code as
being the level for triggering a mandatory general offer) of the
voting rights in any one company or body;

2. invest in any company or entity other than wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company if such investment will result in
more than 20% of the net asset value being invested in such
company or entity as at the date the investment is made;
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3. buy or sell commodities, commodity contracts or precious
metals, except that it may purchase and sell futures contracts on
stock indices and securities which are secured by commodities
or precious metals; and

4, invest more than 50% of its assets outside Hong Kong and
the PRC to the extent of contravening its primary objective of
achieving medium term capital appreciation by investing in
listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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The Company has to comply with investment restrictions 1 and 2 above
at all times while it remains listed as an investment company under

Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules.

Investment restrictions 3 and 4 cannot be changed for at least 3 years
from the date of the prospectus without the approval of the shareholders
of the Company by way of an ordinary resolution. The Board has no
present intention to change any of the above-mentioned investment

restrictions.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors
Dr. WONG Yun Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai

EARRARBLTRAUSNELHFEREARZ
LA EARE - R ME (A B 29 S b S
RFE2BRERS]

FIRF4RRER B ERBRE AR A BRALE
RERNTAMEZBERT EERERAHREE
LPZERATGEE -EFSRBESENEME
AR E R o

EERAEEARBEAFRTIEFAHA/L - K
ARZEFMT

HITES
=EEEL(ZE)
HEMEE

BUFHTES
RRELE
SRR
WEErAs
AL E



In accordance with Article 157 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew and Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung shall retire by
rotation from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
All other directors continue in office.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive directors
lasts until his retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

At the Annual General Meeting, ordinary resolutions will be proposed
to re-elect Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew as executive director and Dr.
FUNG Lewis Hung as independent non-executive directors.

The Company received confirmation of independence in respect of
the year ended 31 March, 2021 from each of the independent non-
executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up
to and as at the date of this report, the Company still considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

The Company’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
accordingly shall comply with material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. During the year and up to the date of this report,
the Company has complied with all the material relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong.
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The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which they may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of their office otherwise in relation
thereto. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance in respect of relevant legal actions
against the directors of the Company.

The Group is committed to building an eco-friendly corporation that
tries to reduce the impacts of its operation on the environment, and to
ensure our compliance of prevailing environmental protection laws and
regulations. For details, please refer to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” contained in this annual report.

As the Group principally engages in investment in listed and unlisted
securities, no specific customers or suppliers will be involved in the
operation of business. The investee companies and the investment
manager are good working partners creating value for the Group. The
Group also values the knowledge and skills of its employees, and
continues to provide favourable career development opportunities for its
employees.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

In the opinion of the Board, there were no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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As at 31t March, 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
were deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFQO) or
which were required to be and were recorded in the register required to
be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
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Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) in  #EREARMT :
the Listing Rules were as follows:
Number of shares
g
Percentage
of issued
Personal Family Corporate Other share capital
Name of director interests interests interests interests Total BRTIRAR
EEns BAER REER HEE S HinfEsR e Bot
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the Company
RAREREEIETZERR
CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew (Note) - - 340,000,000 - 340,000,000 26.74%
HiEtm (HiF)
Note: Wit -

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew is one of the discretionary objects of a trust which
assets include interests in the entire issued share capital of Fung Fai Growth
Limited. Fung Fai Growth Limited holds 340,000,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31¢t March,
2021 was the Company, its subsidiaries or its associate a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executives of the
Company, or their spouses or children under the age of 18, to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or its associated corporation.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executives
of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies contained in the Listing Rules.

As at 31t March, 2021, the following persons or corporations, other
than the interest disclosed above in respect of the Directors, interest in
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have
been notified to the Company and recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholders

IR &

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company
ARAAEREHBEOIEBEIZEEBR

Fung Fai Growth Limited (Note (a))
Fung Fai Growth Limited (#7:%(a))

Kingswell Holdings Group Limited (Note (b))
Kingswell Holdings Group Limited (/77 (b))

Notes:

(a) The entire issued share capital of Fung Fai Growth Limited is owned
by a trust. Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew and his family members are
the beneficiaries of the trust which assets include interests in the entire
issued share capital of Fung Fai Growth Limited.

(b) The entire issued share capital of Kingswell Holdings Group Limited is

beneficially owned by Mr. LEONG Chi Wai.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 315 March, 2021, the Directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares of equity derivatives or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which would be required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Significant related party transactions entered by the Group during
the year ended 31t March, 2021 which also constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”), are disclosed in note 27 on the consolidated financial
statements.

The investment manager of the Company is regarded as a continuing
connected person of the Company under Chapter 21 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the investment management agreement constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company. The management fee during
the year amounted to approximately HK$1,621,000.

As disclosed in more details under the Company’s announcement and
circular dated 25" January, 2019 and 28" February, 2019 respectively.
The Group entered into certain conditional agreements with the Upbest
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Upbest Group”), which would
constitute continuing connected transactions (the “CCT”) on the part of
the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2021, and 31t March, 2022.
The CCT are subject to approvals by the independent shareholders of
the Company and the independent shareholders of the Upbest Group
respectively. The relevant resolutions of the Company approving the
CCT have been passed at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 26" March, 2019. Save for disclosed above, certain
details of which are disclosed in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions in note 27 on
the consolidated financial statements and have confirmed that the
connected transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into:

i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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The auditors of the Company have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions during the year as set out in note 27 on the consolidated
financial statements and confirmed that these transactions:

i) were approved by the Board;

i) where applicable, were in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Company;

iii) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions; and

iv) have not exceeded the caps stated in the relevant
announcement.

A letter pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules has been issued
to the Board by the auditors of the Company confirming the matters
stated in Rule 14A.56 in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions for management agreement.

Details of significant management contracts in relation to the Company’s
business are included in note 27 on the consolidated financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders under the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

The Company has established an audit committee according to “A
Guide for The Formation of an Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The primary duties of
the audit committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Group. The Audit Committee
had also reviewed the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31st March, 2021 in conjunction with the Company’s external auditors.

The audit committee of the Group consists of 4 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Dr. FUNG
Lewis Hung, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald and Mr. KWOK Ming Fai.
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The Company has complied throughout the year ended 31t March,
2021 with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange, except that independent non-executive directors of
the Company were not appointed for a specific term but are subject
to retirement by rotation according to the Articles of Association of the
Company. As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by the Company, all Directors of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period.

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the
Company'’s shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares.

The financial statements for the year ended 31t March, 2018 was
audited by Li, Tang, Chen & Co.

The financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2019, 2020
and 2021 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited. HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall hold office until the conclusion of
the next annual general meeting of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire and a resolution for their

reappointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

WONG Yun Kuen
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22" June, 2021
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Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
and enhance shareholder value. The Company is committed to high
standards of corporate governance with a view to being transparent,
open and accountable to our shareholders.

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance practices
and structures that were in place during the financial year ended 31
March, 2021, with specific reference to the principles and guidelines
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). In developing and
reviewing its corporate governance policies and practices, the
Company has sought to adopt a balanced approach.

The Company complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout year ended
31t March, 2021, except for the following.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1, non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. None of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company were appointed
for a specific term. None of the non-executive directors has entered
or proposed to enter into any service contracts with the Company or
its subsidiaries. But all directors of the Company are subject to the
retirement by rotation according to the provisions under article 157
of the Articles of Association of the Company. As such, the Board
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company's corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
The independent non-executive director, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald
was unable to attend the annual general meeting (“AGM”) on 14"
August, 2020 due to his other business engagements. This constitutes
a deviation from code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code. Moreover,
non attendance of this Independent Non-executive Director may also
constitute deviation from code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. Despite
of that independent non-executive director, all the other directors of the
Company were present in the AGM.
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With the assistance of the Compliance Department, the Board has
designed a proper corporate governance structure. Currently, there
are three board committees, including Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee perform their distinct roles in
accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Composition

As at 31st March, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises six members. Dr. WONG Yun Kuen, acts as Chairman of
the Board, whereas Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew acts as Managing
Director of the Company. The Company has four independent non-
executive directors, they are Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Dr. FUNG
Lewis Hung, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald and Mr. KWOK Ming Fai.
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan and Mr. KWOK Ming Fai has appropriate
professional accounting experience and expertise.

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics
and integrity. The biographical details of each director are disclosed in
page 24 to page 26 of this Annual Report.

Each independent non-executive director has pursuant to the Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, confirmed that he is independent of the Company
and the Company also considers that they are independent.

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transaction by the directors (the “Model Code”). Having made specific
enquiry of all directors, the Company confirmed that all directors have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
during the year.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) among members of the Board.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, the directors
shall hold office subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years and eligible for
re-election.
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Function

The Board of Directors, headed by the Chairman, is responsible for
formulation and approval of the Group’s development and business
strategies and policies, approval of annual budgets and business
plans, recommendation of dividend, and supervision of management
in accordance with the rules governing the meeting of the Board
of Directors, the Managing Director’s working guides, articles of
association and rules governing the meeting of shareholders.

The executive directors are responsible for day-to-day management
of the Company’s operations. These executive directors conduct
regular meetings with the senior management of the Company and its
subsidiaries and associated companies, at which operational issues
and financial performance are evaluated.

The Company considers well-developed and timely reporting systems
and internal controls are essential, and the Board of Directors plays a key
role in the implementation and monitoring of internal financial controls.

The Board of Directors has established procedure to enable directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Articles of Association of the Company contain description of
responsibilities and operation procedures of the Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors holds regular meeting and listens to the operating
reports of the Company and makes policies. Significant operating
policies of the Company have to be discussed and passed by the Board
of Directors. Board meetings include regular meetings and irregular
meetings. The Board of Directors meets formally at least 4 times a year.

Besides regular and irregular meetings, the Board of Directors obtains
adequate information through working meetings, presided by the
Chairman in a timely manner, to monitor objectives and strategies of the
management, financial conditions and operating results of the Company
and provisions of significant agreements.
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For the financial year ended 31% March, 2021, the Board of Directors
held 12 regular executive Board meetings at approximately monthly
interval and 9 irregular Board meetings which were convened when
deemed necessary. Due notice and Board papers were given to all
directors prior to the meeting in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Code. Details of individual attendance of
directors are set out below:

Name of directors EEHE
Executive Directors HTES

Dr. WONG Yun Kuen HEHERLT

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew BEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRR&LE

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung BIRERE

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HEgLs
Mr. KWOK Ming Fai FEELE

Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman and the Managing Director are segregated
and assumed by two separate individuals who have no relationship with
each other to strike a balance of power and authority so that the job
responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board. The Chairman is also responsible for
deciding the agenda of each Board meeting, taking into account, where
appropriate, matters proposed by other directors for inclusion in the
agenda.

The Managing Director is delegated with the authorities to manage the
Group’s business in all aspects effectively, implement major strategies,
make day-to-day decision and coordinate overall business operation.

The number of independent non-executive directors is more than
half of the Board membership. The Board membership is covered by
professionally qualified and widely experienced personnel so as to
bring in valuable contribution and different professional advices and
consultancy for the development of the Company.

Executive Board Meeting
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Responsibilities

In the course of discharging their duties, the directors act in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

- Regular board meetings focusing on business strategy, operational
issues and financial performance.

- Active participation on the boards of subsidiaries.

- Approval of annual budgets for each operating company covering
strategy, financial and business performance, key risks and
opportunities.

- Monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of
internal and external reporting.

- Reviewing of the compliance with the CG Code.

- Reviewing of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company through the Audit Committee.

- Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, Board members and shareholders, including misuse
of corporate assets and abuse in related party transaction.

- Ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity of
the Company, including financial statements, and relationship with
other stakeholders, and compliance with all laws and ethics.

To enable the Company's directors to meet their obligations, an
appropriate organizational structure is in place with clearly defined
responsibilities and limits of authority.

Board Committees

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, have been
established by the Board of Directors to strengthen its functions and
to enhance its expertise. These committees have been formed with
specific written terms of reference which is available on the Company’s
website set out details of the Committee’s duties, powers and functions.
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Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of four independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Dr. FUNG
Lewis Hung, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald and Mr. KWOK Ming Fai. It is
chaired by Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan. It reports directly to the Board
of Directors and reviews matters within the scope of audit, such as
financial statements and internal controls, to protect the interests of the
Company’s shareholders.

The Audit Committee meets regularly with the Company’s external

auditors to discuss audit process and accounting issues, and reviews

effectiveness of internal controls and risk evaluation. Written terms

of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the Audit

Committee are regularly reviewed and updated by the Board.

Set out below is the summary of work done during the year:

- to review the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31t March, 2020 and for the six months ended 30" September,
2020;

- to review effectiveness of the internal control, financial controls
and risk management system;

- to review of internal audit function;

- toreview of continuing connected transactions and annual caps;

- to review auditors’ statutory audit plan and letters of representation;
and

- to consider and approve 2020 audit fees and audit work.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Name of directors EEME
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRR&SE

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung IR i 1 2

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HEREL

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai ZBERFE k&
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Remuneration Committee

The Board has established a Remuneration Committee comprising one
executive director, Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew and four independent
non-executive directors, Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan, Dr. FUNG Lewis
Hung, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald and Mr. KWOK Ming Fai. It is chaired
by Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
reviewed with reference to the Corporate Governance Code.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review and
consider Company’s policy for remuneration of directors and senior
management, to determine remuneration packages of executive
directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, and to recommend to the Board of

Directors remuneration of independent non-executive directors.

Set out below is the summary of work of the Remuneration Committee
done during the year:

- to review the remuneration policy for 2020/2021;

- to review the remuneration of the executive directors and the

independent non-executive directors; and

- toreview the annual share option policy (if any).

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Name of directors EEME
Executive Director BITES

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew Hifmkst
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRR&SLE

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung RS 1R o

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald WERELE

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai BEARE K &£
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Nomination Committee

The Board has established a nomination committee on 21t March, 2012
comprising one executive director, Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew and
four independent non-executive directors, Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan,
Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung, Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald and Mr. KWOK Ming
Fai. It is chaired by Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan.

The terms of reference of the nomination committee, which is available
on the Company’s website, set out details of the Committee’s duties,
powers and functions, nomination procedures and the process and
criteria adopted for selection and recommendation of candidates for
directorship of the Company, summary of which is set out below:

review the structure, size and diversity (including without limitation,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service)
of the Board at least annually; and make recommendations to
the Board regarding any proposed changes to implement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
director;

review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the
objectives;

develop, maintain and review a policy for the nomination of
Directors, as appropriate. This includes the nomination procedures
and process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship set out in the policy;

regularly review the time required from a Director to perform his
responsibilities; and

make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief
executive officer, taking into account the Company’s corporate
strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
needed in the future;
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The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year. Details of
individual attendance of its members are set out in the table below:

Name of directors EEME
Executive Director HITES

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew HEmELE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRoRSF L&

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung IR i 1 28

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HEZEE

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai BEAE K&

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a Board Diversity Policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
which became effective in September 2013. This Diversity Policy aims
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board of
Directors, through the consideration of a number of factors in the Board
members’ selection process, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merits, and have paid due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board in selecting candidates.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee shall nominate suitable candidates to the
Board for it to consider to appoint as director to fill casual vacancies
and consider of directors to be re-appointed at an annual general
meeting.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination
Committee in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

a.  Reputation for integrity;

b. Accomplishment and experience in the investment industry, in
particular, in assets management, regulated license person and
related investment experience;

c.  Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

d. Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the discretion to nominate
any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director and to the public disclosure of their personal
data on any documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in
relation to their standing for election as a director.

To ensure Directors’ contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant, the Company encourages Directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and understanding of the business and markets
in which the Group operates. Directors are also provided with monthly
performance and position updates of the Group, and information such
as performance and key operational highlights to enable the Board as a
whole as well as each Director to discharge their duties. During the year
ended 31t March, 2021, all directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development and provided the Company with
their records of training. A summary of training records provided by the
Directors is as follows:

Name of directors EEME
Executive Directors HTES

Dr. WONG Yun Kuen HEHERLT

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew BEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan R EE

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung BIRIER

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HER L4

Mr. KWOK Ming Fal DI A&
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The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

(f) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company.

External Auditors

During the year and as at the end of the reporting period at 31 March,
2021, the remuneration payable and paid to the Group’s existing
auditors HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out as follows:

Services rendered for the Group
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It is the responsibility of the Board to ensure that the Company
maintains sound and effective risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets at all times. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling
its corporate governance roles in the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal controls, and the resourcing
of the finance and internal audit functions.

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group and
this process includes updating the system of internal controls when
there are changes to business environment or regulatory guidelines.

The Board is of the view that the system of internal controls in place
for the year under review and up to the date of issuance of the annual
report and consolidated financial statements is sound and is sufficient
to safeguard the interests of shareholders and employees, and the
Group’s assets.

The investment manager assists the Board in the implementation of the
board’s policies and procedures on risk and control by identifying and
assessing the risks faced, and involving in the design, operation and
monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risks.

The key processes that have been established in reviewing the
adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls include the
following:

- The Executive Board is responsible to ensure the effectiveness of
the daily operations and that the operations are in accordance with
the corporate objectives and strategies.

- The Audit Committee of the Company reviews internal control
issues identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities and
management, and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

Policies and procedures have been designed for safeguarding
assets against unauthorised use or disposition; maintenance of
proper accounting records for the use of reliable information within
the business or external publication, and compliance of relevant
regulations, rules and legislations. The policies and procedures are
designed for providing reasonable but not absolute assurance to avoid
fraud, material misstatements or errors.
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An independent CPA has been engaged to perform the internal audit
function of the Group. The scope of internal audit will be determined at
the start of each year. As part of the ongoing review of the systems, the
internal audit reviews and assesses the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems, makes recommendation and reports to the Audit
Committee and the Board once a year.

Mr. LEUNG Man Lai was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company on 30" July, 2012. The Company Secretary reports to the
Directors of the Company and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters. According to the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
the Company Secretary has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

The Board ensures the inside information is kept strictly confidential
until the relevant announcement is made. The Directors are not aware
of any significant areas which need to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the normal
operations of the Group.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i)  the general financial condition of the Group;

(iiy capital and debt level of the Group;

(iii) future cash requirements and availability for business operations,
business strategies and future development needs;

(iv) the general market conditions; and

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group’s lenders; and any other factors that the Board deems
appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Company Law of the Cayman Islands and Articles
of Association of the Company.
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Finance

The Company’s assets were used in an appropriate manner, the
expenditures in each of the operating units of the Group were under a
strict control, expenditures exceeding certain predetermined amounts
needed management’s authorisation. Accounting records were properly
maintained. The allocation of resources and manpower in performing
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate to comply with
the requirement of Listing Rules.

Operation

A hierarchical system with proper work flow and reporting procedures
was duly established in each of the operating units. Every employee
was assigned with a specific area of duty and responsibility.

Regular meetings with the attendance of senior management and
representatives from each of the operating units were held during the
year so as to improve communication and identify potential issues within
the Group.

During the year, the continuing connected transactions undertaken by
the Group are included in the transactions set out in note 27 on the
consolidated financial statements. The Group has fully complied with
the Listing Rules requirements. Financial Reports, announcements and
circulars have been prepared and published in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The prevailing internal control system
are compliant with all the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they
can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. All resolutions put forward at a
shareholders meeting will be taken by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and the poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange after the shareholders meeting.
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An annual general meeting (“AGM”") held on 14" August, 2020, the
Chairman of the Board and the representative of external auditors was
available to answer questions at the meeting. The chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures of conducting a poll during the
meeting. All resolutions were proposed by the Chairman at the meeting
and voted separately by way of poll. All the votes cast at the said
meeting were properly counted and recorded.

Attendance of individual Directors at AGM during the year:

Name of directors EEME
Executive Directors BITES

Dr. WONG Yun Kuen BEEEL

Mr. CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew BEREE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRR&EEE

Dr. FUNG Lewis Hung I8 i T 22

Mr. TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HERELE

Mr. KWOK Ming Fai B L A&

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
20" August, 2021 which will be conducted by way of poll.
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Way to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 89 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
general meetings shall also be convened on the written requisition of
any two or more members of the Company deposited at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company
ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided
that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the rights of voting at general meetings of the Company. General
meetings may also be convened on the written requisition of any one
member of the Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal
office, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and
signed by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the rights of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, details and
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Members’ Enquiries

Members should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong. Members may at any time
make a request for the Company’s information to the extent that such
information is publically available. Members may also make enquiries to
the following contact details of the Company:

Address: Flat B, 16th Floor, Wah Kit Commercial Centre,
300 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: 852 3575 9396

Constitutional Documents
There was no change in the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company during the year.

The updated memorandum and articles of association of the Company
is available on the Company’s website.
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Procedures and Sufficient Contact Details for Putting Forward
Proposals at Members’ Meetings

Members are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the operations,
strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed at members’
meeting. Proposal shall be sent to the Board or the Company Secretary
by written requisition. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company, members who wish to put forward a proposal should convene
an extraordinary general meeting by the procedures set out in “Way to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting” above.

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. The Statement of the Auditors
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 69
to 75.
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UBA Investments Limited (the “Company”) is an investment company
and principally engages in investment in a diversified portfolio of listed
and unlisted companies. As an investment company, the Company
does not directly participate in the production and operation of its
subsidiaries. While actively seeking to optimise its investment portfolio
and maximise shareholder return, the Company lives up to its corporate
social responsibility and strikes a balance between the interests of
stakeholders such as the shareholders and the community, with the
ultimate goal of achieving a sustainable corporation.

In accordance with the requirements of Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules, the Company hereby presents its environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report (“ESG report”) for the reporting period from
1t April, 2020 to 31t March, 2021. This ESG Report sets out the ESG
obligation, ESG governance structure, performance and initiatives of
the Group. In particular, the Key Performance Indicators (“KPI”) of
environmental and social aspect disclosed in the ESG Report covers our
operating office in Hong Kong.

This ESG report summarises the ESG policies in addressing the material
ESG issues, as well as the compliance with laws and regulations
relevant to those issues, of the Company based on the reporting
principles including of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance” and
“consistency”.
Materiality: ~ Relatively crucial and significant ESG issues are shown in
the ESG Report.

KPls are disclosed in a measurable manner with
sufficient description on the changes.

Quantitative:

Balance: The ESG report is prepared under an impartial manner.

Consistency: The ESG report is presented in consistent manner over

time.

The Company believes that a sound ESG structure is important for
the sustainability and continued development of the Company. The
Company is willing to take more responsibilities for the society and
strike a balance between the shareholders’ interests and the society’s
benefits.

We will continue to strengthen our efforts in information collection
for better performance in the ESG and broader disclosure of related
information in sustainable development. We welcome any comments
and suggestions on this report as well as the Company’s performance in
sustainability development.
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The Board is the highest decision-making body for the ESG
management of the Company. The Board formulates and reviews the
Company’s ESG vision, objectives, strategies and targets to ensure
that they are set in accordance with the Company’s strategic goals and
vision as well as the latest ESG trends and issues that may affect the
Company’s operations. The summary of governance structure are as
follow:

Role Functions and duties
At Bae B E
The Board -

%R -

@- AR E&

EZQNARARE HENEREEZESA
KB -EFQHTUMAAARNERE  #HE
LERER B8 REMBR BREAEAA
7%%%5%@@%%&7%%%$ T%%%
RERE  HERELABENEE - AEEREM
C-JUNNE

Oversee the relevant ESG-related issues;

HERELAREEE

- Review and provides strategic advice to the ESG working group
- EBERRARE HeRELIIFE)EREEBER
- Review ESG-related goals and targets.

L

ESG working Group S

RIE e RERIENE ESG strategies

RERIER B R RER

To assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility for the Group’s

- BHERERTHRUASEERE HEREAERNEERM

- To engage with stakeholders and to solicit their feedback on the
Group’s ESG risks and opportunities;

- HBEOHELRY UHARSFHASERE HegkELRRREENRE

- Reports to the Board on the implementation status of ESG initiatives

- REEg

HEARRE HERERBREOHRTRER

The Company’s ESG management work is led by the Board and is
responsible for steering the ESG's overall direction and oversee the
running of our ESG system. The ESG working group is responsible for
implementing ESG policies and measures.

- Collates ESG key performance indicator data

BERE HeRERERENERHE
Facilitates the implementation of ESG policies
REBHRIRE HEREBBEK

Prepares ESG Report
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The stakeholders of the Company refer to groups and individuals who
have significant impact on the Company’s business, or those who are
affected by the Company’s business. The participation of stakeholders
is an important part of the business management of the Company for it
to examine potential risks and business opportunities. Communications
with stakeholders enable the Company to better understand their views
and to bring business practices closer to their needs and expectations,
so as to properly manage the views of different stakeholders, and the
key stakeholders include investors, employees, suppliers, government
and regulators and community. The table below sets out the concerned
matter of different stakeholders during the reporting period.

Stakeholders Main Concerns in ESG
@A TERE - HEREREISEHE
Investors - Corporate governance
REXE - {XER
- Business strategies, performance
and investment returns
- EBRE RBERRELDR
- Sustainability of our investment
and operations
- RERZENIHEZE
- Competence and quality of the
management
- EBRENROREEZR
- Anti-corruption
= RES
= Community Investment
- HEERE
Employees - Development and Training
BT - BERRE
- Health and safety
- RBRE&EZE
- Remuneration and benefits
- HMRER
- Anti-corruption
- R&EA
- Working environment
= TEIRER

ARAMBESAREAREEBEEATEN
BELEA  IXARARRBEAZENEERE
A BEASE/ARALEEANER R
RAEREERRLAE ARRFEEASK
ERS BB TRREET ERE AETAR - A
RE A NETEREYAREE I TREEN
L LAFEERGEARNES NENTENY
2 UZERETARNENER - EREDA
BRREE BR HER BEREERERX
MR e

Main Communication channels

TEBEERK

- Annual general meetings and other
shareholders meetings

- BRRBFRERHETEERRAE

- Annual and interim reports

- FERERPH®RSE

- Announcements for investors

- RREETENRE

= Company website

Ak S

- Continuous education and
professional trainings

- FEHE LBEE
- Annual appraisal
- FEFE

- Attention to occupational health
and safety

- BIBRFRREZE

- Performance management

- BENER

- Regular meetings

- fle



Stakeholders
EmA
Suppliers
Mg

Government and regulator

BRKEEHE

Community
HE

Main Concerns in ESG

TERE HEREARBISE

- Punctual fulfillment of agreements

- REETHE

- Integrity and probity

-  HEREER

- Product/service quality

- EmkRBEE

- Company'’s core value and its
public image

- DAHMBRLEBEREARER

- Compliance with laws and
regulations

- BTERRER

- Anti-corruption

- k&S

- Community Investment

- HERE

- Environmental protection
- RERE

Main Communication channels
FTEEBRE

Supplier selection with due care

- BEMEMER

- Contractual obligations are in
place

- FINAKNBE

- Direct communication our
concerns to suppliers

-  HEREHERRARANEE

- Correspondence

- BfE

- Regulatory filings

- EEXHEE

- Websites of Government and
regulatory bodies

- BRREEHEEL

- Charity donations

- EERE

- Sponsorships

- By
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Materiality Assessment

The Company have evaluated the materiality of ESG issues to the Group
of which 9 major issues of them have been identified. The Company
has sought stakeholders to score each sustainability issue according to
their views towards the importance to the Company and to stakeholders
respectively. Materiality matrix graph has been prepared based on the
scores given by the stakeholders as follows:

Anti-corruption and Anti-Money Laundering [ &35 M < 8

Community investment 4 [& 5% &

Compliance of labour standard &1 & % TIZ#4 18

Compliance with laws and regulations 38 ~F5A# %

Employees development and training & & % & K153

Employees remuneration and benefits & 8 &8 & & FI

Health and safety f2EFE % %2

Sustainability of our investment and operations 1% & &8 8 ] 5 E 3% R

Use of Resource & JR{#H

We believe the most pertinent sustainability issues include competence
and quality of the management, corporate governance, sustainability of
our investment and operations, development and training, occupational
health and safety, compliance with local laws and regulations, healthy
market development, use of resource and Community Investment.
We shall continue to collect stakeholders’ opinions, and take into
consideration the valuable suggestions and advice to proactively
implement our policies on environmental protection and social care to
foster sustainable development.
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Targets and Goals
In order to enhance the accountability and effectiveness of ESG
management, the Company set some key targets and goals as follow:

Relevant Stakeholders Targets and goals for the Year

BEREN
RTRBRE HENEREENHEEREN
- RRARIRIATEENERLEDN

Impact on material topic

HEAREZRE A AEERERAMN BEXZENEE
Investors - To consider the ESG-related risk in the - Sustainability of our investment
rREE investment decision making process and operations
- EREARBEPEZRERR MHERE - RERLENTHEN
egicl N
Employees - Provide more training to employee - Development and training
BT - REFZEEE - BERRE
- Provide and maintain a healthy and - Health and safety
safety working environment - RBEERZ2

- RUERRBREEZEZIERER
Reduce the usage of electricity and

paper
- RPAENAK

Environmental =
BB

Sustainability of Investment

The Group understands that the increasing trend of demand for the
ESG investing for the investors. As an ongoing commitment to good
corporation, the Group recognize the responsibility in minimizing the
negative environmental and social impact of our business operations
and our investment portfolio, in order to bring long-term sustainable
value to our investors and shareholders. ESG analysis is an integral
part of the Group’s investment process. The Group will consider all
environmental and social criteria when making investment decisions and
will invest in investment which have an adequate level of governance
quality and mitigate environmental and will not investing in any
investment which may violate environmental law. The Group also concur
investment in those ESG compliance investment may improve Group
reputation and bring long-term sustainable value to our investors and
shareholders.

- Electricity and Water consumption
- BERRAER
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Emissions, Use of Resources, Environment and Natural
Resources and Climate Change

The Group operates in the investment field and it's operation is
mainly office-based and the Group is committed to minimising
the impact of businesses on the environment through adopting
eco-friendly measures at the office. In addition, there is no
actual business facing climate change directly. However,
climate change is seriously all over the world, and the extreme
weather is affecting the Global in recent years. The Company
believes that climate change will affect worldwide and we should
put effort to reduce waste at sources and to promote energy
efficiency.

The Group encourages employees to implement the following
environmental initiatives to prevent the adverse climate change:

- to reduce paper consumption by using duplex printing,
reusing papers printed on one side and place for paper
waste recycling;

- using electronic storage and communication wherever
possible;

- setting air-conditioning temperature at 25 degree in
summer whenever possible to energy saving;

- to switch off lights and air-conditioning in the meeting
room and the computer at the workstation when not in
use; and

= Conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings are
arranged where possible.

Furthermore, climate-related issues such as risk of extreme
weather is increasing which may affect significantly of the
operation of the Company and may danger to the safety of the
employee. Also the change of regulatory regarding to the climate
related issue may also lead to devaluation of the company
investment which include energy related investment. Therefore,
the Company will consider climate related issue before making
our investment decision in order to mitigate potential impacts to
the Company and shareholders.
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In view of the business nature, the Group’s operations do not
directly involve the use of natural resources as the Group
does not involve in any industrial process nor use any motor
vehicles. Hence there had been no direct emission relation to air
pollutants and greenhouse gases (“GHG"), no discharges into
water and land (Scope 1 as below table). The main emissions
and wastes produced by the Group are primarily attributable to
its use of electricity and paper (Scope 2 and 3 as below table).
Also the Group is not aware of any significant generation of
hazardous waste and any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations in relation to environmental protection during
the Reporting period that have significant impact on the Group.
The Company also believes that its business operations have
minimal direct impact on the environment.

Environmental performance

The Group believed that the environmental protection as
an important component to form a part of our corporate
responsibility and are therefore committed to promoting
environmental protection activities.

In accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, our environmental performance of
“Emissions”and "Use of Resource” during the reporting period
are tabulated as below.

Use of Resource

ERER

2021
Resource type Total Consumption ~ Consumption per person
ERE BRE ARE
Electricity EY) 15,426 kWh TEE 5142 kWh THE

Paper @ 8 kg DT 267 kg AR
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2020

Total Consumption ~ Consumption per person

aRg AYRE

17,406 kWh THRE 5802 kWh TEE

8 kg AT 267 kg B



Greenhouse Gas Emission

BERBHER
2021 2020

Greenhouse gas indicators Major sources CO, emitted Emitted per person €0, emitted Emitted per person
RERERED IZRR SR ASHH - (47e: 3,1 A3HH
Scope 1 HE Nil i - - - -
Direct emissions BREN
Scope 2 g2 Blectricity &) 12187 kg 2AF 4062 kg AT 13751 kg AR 4584 kg A
Energy indirect emissions &£ BEZHR
Scope 3 &3 Paper # B kg AF 3 kg AF B kg AF 3 kg AF
Other indirect emissions £ tEEHR
Total CO, emission Bl

equivalents Hnge 12205 kg AF 4075 kg AT 13789 kg AR 4597 kg A
Electricity HE
The electricity consumed by the Group was mainly used in the AEERNEREFEBLEENAERE

office during its normal business operation and supplied by The
Hong Kong Electric Co., Ltd. During the Year, the Group has
consumed 15,426 kWh (2020: 17,406 kWh) of electricity with a
monthly average usage of 1,286 kWh (2020: 1,451 kWh) and
5,142 kWh (2020: 5,802 kWh) per person, which producing CO,
equivalent emissions of approximately 12,187 kg (2020: 13,751
kg). These consumption of the electricity was mainly attributable
by the use of light, office appliances and air-conditioning in the
office.

Water

There is no direct water supply to the office apart from water
uses/affluent discharges at shared facilities of the office
building. Water consumption by the Group for the year involved
mainly bottled drinking water uses at its offices premises and
the Group’s business operations do not require any other water
usage. The Group’s office utilised a total of approximately 24
bottles of drinking water with total of 454 Liter, an average 2
bottles drinking water per month during the year 2021 and 2020.
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Paper

The Company encourages employees to reduce paper
consumption by using duplex printing, reusing papers printed
on one side and place for paper waste recycling, also using
electronic storage and communication wherever possible.
During the year 2021 and 2020, the Group used a total of
approximately 8 kg of paper in its normal office operations for
printing documents and the total CO, equivalent emissions for
the paper used was approximately 38 kg.

Employment

Employees is the most valuable asset to the Group. It is the
policy of the Group to employ person which is suitable to the
position with equal opportunity (non-discrimination against
gender, marital status, disability, age, race, family status, sexual
orientation, nationality and religion). Competitive remuneration
package will be provided for the employees. The Group is in
full compliance with relevant employment laws and regulation
just like the “Employment Ordinance” (Chapter 57), “Minimum
Wage Ordinance” (Chapter 608), “Sex Discrimination Ordinance”
(Chapter 480), “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance”
(Chapter 485), “Disability Discrimination Ordinance” (Chapter
487) and “Race Discrimination Ordinance” (Chapter 602), etc.
The Group is not aware of any non-compliance in relation to
employment laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

As at 31t March, 2021 and 31t March, 2020, we have 1 full
time employee, 2 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors of the Company. All of our employees
including directors are senior management and located in Hong
Kong and no turnover during the period. By gender, 100% male.
By age group, 43% and 57% (2020: 57% and 43%) between age
group of 35 to 55 and over 55 respectively.

Health and Safety

The Group will provide a healthy and safety working environment
to the employees. The Group has provided a guideline for
work safety including environmental hygiene and cleanliness,
machine operation, smoking ban and fire prevention, hazardous
materials handling, arrangements in times of typhoons and
rainstorms, as well as response to emergencies, etc. By offering
opportunities for a flexible work arrangement, the Group also
encourage our employees to maintain a healthy work-life
balance.
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The Group is in full compliance with the “Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance” (Chapter 509), and is not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations in relation
to health and safety working environment during the Reporting
Period that have significant impact on the Group. During the
period, there was no staff suffer work-related fatalities and injury.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 was continuing since early
2020 which has brought about additional uncertainties for
our employees’ health. The Group has purchased additional
cleaning and epidemic prevention equipment and consumables
such as surgical face masks, sanitizer etc. The Group has
implemented the precautionary measures to prevent and control
the spread of the COVID-19 at the working place, including
compulsory body temperature checks, mandatory wearing of a
surgical face mask, limit the visitors to access our office.

Development and Training

On-the-job training and continuous professional development
are important elements to enhance the industry knowledge
of the employees of the Group. The Group provide relevant
training opportunities to its employees from time to time and
encourage employees to attend seminars by themselves for
their own professional assertions which include Listing Rules
and accountancy update which can boost the competence
and efficiency of the employees and hence the Company’s
professionalism and performance. During the period, all the
employees are male and senior management including directors
had participated in training and the average number of the hours
spent on training per staff is around 50 hours.

Labour standards

It is the policy of the Group to comply with the relevant laws and
regulations which prohibit the employment of child and force
labour.

We strictly check the age of job candidate and in case of
holding forged identification documents or providing false
personal data will report to relevant regulatory authority.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance with relevant
rules and regulations on preventing child or forced labour during
the Reporting Period.
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Supply Chain Management

As the Group operates in the investment field, which is office
based, it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business
operation in general. The Group mainly purchases office
equipment and office supplies through approved suppliers
according to their reputation, the quality of goods and services
provided. The Group will select on a competitive basis and taken
into account factors like their reputation, price, integrity and
competence for other suppliers just like external professional
service provider. The quality of their service is closely monitored
to ensure that the service provided is in accordance with
agreed contractual terms. In addition to the increasing concern
of the ESG, the Company will also select suppliers with highly
promotion of the environmentally preferable products or services
by searching their publicly disclosed information and relevant
news regarding to ESG. The Group believe the environmental
social risks of our supply chain are properly managed and are
kept to minimal.

The Group has maintained good practice to select and evaluate
its suppliers and their engagements. During the period, there are
2 major office supplies suppliers and 5 major external service
providers. All the suppliers were located in Hong Kong.

Product responsibility

The Group does not have products or services provided to
customers and hence the product responsibility is not applicable
to the Group.

Anti-corruption and Anit-Money Laundering

The Group is committed to ensuring that no bribes, payment,
advantages and money laundering are solicited from or given or
offered to any persons, whether in the public or private sector,
for any purpose, which can ensure the strict adherence to the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance and Anti-Money Laundering and
Counter-Terrorist Financing Ordinance of Hong Kong. The Group
regard honesty, integrity and fair play as the core values that
must be upheld by our colleagues at all times. The Group does
not allow any bribery, corruption, extortion, money-laundering or
other fraudulent activities. The Group will support the employees
which include internal training and provide relevant reading
regarding to the anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.
Employees are required to possess high ethical standards and
demonstrate professional conduct in all business dealings with
our stakeholders.
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Whistle-blowing channels are provided to the employees for the
purpose of anti-corruption and anti-money laundering reporting.
Those reporting employees are anonymous, can raise concerns
without the fear of retaliation. Any form of retaliation against the
whistle-blower is prohibited.

During the reporting period, the Group had no legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

Community investment

The Group encourages employees to contribute their time and
efforts in participating in various local community activities and
events.

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong. The Group
donated mask to charities to the citizen who are in need.

If you have any comments and advice on this Report or our performance
on sustainable development, please contact us by email at info@uba.
com.hk. Your feedback would greatly help us continuously improve our
policies for promoting the sustainable development of the Group.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B &3t 0 F W T OA TR 4
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of UBA
Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to 144, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March,
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31t March,
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BRERSE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAMARERTEEBRERSER

Valuation of suspended trading securities and unlisted equity securities measured at fair value

EFEERSREAVENEZ R ETREAR S 2 fHE

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
FLRGAWERERME8

At 31t March, 2021, the Group holds suspended trading
securities and unlisted equity securities classified as
level 3 under the fair value hierarchy (“Level 3 Financial
Instruments”), amounted to approximately HK$304,000 and
HK$1,450,000 respectively.

BE_T-—F=H=1+—8  ~5EHE D H%304,000/%
7% 1,450,0008 T2 BiF EEE 5 M ETRAFE R (REQ
TEERPBERF=ZE(F=E&€®MIA]) -

The valuation of the Group’s suspended trading securities
and unlisted equity securities are based on a combination
of market data and different valuation models which may
require to consider numbers of inputs. The valuations of the
suspended trading securities and unlisted equity securities
are complex and require the application of significant
judgment by the management.

EEECEFEER SN LTRABSAOEEDERT IS
FERAGAFEZRRAHENTRAAERANES - EFE
BEEGRFLEMBRARSNEERERLFREREFLE

P

Our procedures in relation to valuation of Level 3 Financial
Instruments included, but were not limited to:

RMEE-EeRTAGEARNEFEERETRR

o Obtaining understanding of the valuation models and
the processes through enquiries with the independent
valuers and management’s review process of the
work of the independent valuers with respect to the
valuation of financial assets;

e BBANBUMEMNEEEUBYRAEMNMBEEE
RERTEzZEERE  THRAGEEANRRE

° Evaluating the independent valuers’ competence,
capabilities and their experiences in conducting
valuation of similar financial assets;

o  MEBUMEMENEEUNBEESENER 8
R AR B

o Checking the respective independent valuation
reports and discussing the valuation of financial
assets with the management, and together with our
auditors’ own external valuation specialists, where
necessary:

o  REMENBYMERS Y EEREIN LY R ERM
BN EER B mT B EENGE :
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRELSE EMmmRELTEERARERSE

Valuation of suspended trading securities and unlisted equity securities measured at fair value
EEEERSREAVEFEZFLTRARS 2(hE

In determining the fair value of Level 3 Financial o evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
Instruments, the Group engages independent professional models and assumptions based on the industry
valuers to perform valuation of the aforesaid Level 3 knowledge;

Financial Instruments. o  BETEARTHEEEAMBROEE M
RETE-ELRIENATER S£EESBVIEG e checking the mathematical accuracy of
B M E—EemT EEITHE- valuation calculations; and

s MEMEHENERERNE K

J Making inquiry for the background of the contracted
parties to understand the relevant investment and
identifying any conditions that were relevant to the
valuation of financial assets.

. HENFTZERELERANT RBARE TR
P EELERBNE @GRS -

We considered management’s fair value measurement of
Level 3 Financial Instruments to be supportable by the
available evidence.
BEMRREREHE-EeMIANATEFERIRER
IREOSRS o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design, and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters, that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yu Chi Fat.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Chi Fat
Practising Certificate Number: P05467

Hong Kong, 22" June, 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR REeBRaRRHEME2ERER
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BE-F--F=A=+-HLFH

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt FET FET
Gross proceeds from disposal of trading HER S EFH
securities FTiS /B 1A% 2,581 17,600
Revenue [YON 9 3,695 3,889
Net loss on financial assets at fair value BAFERNERERIEREZ
through profit or loss BMBEEZEERTE 10 (8,215) (42,456)
Net gain/(loss) on other investment at fair ~ EAFENEREREINERZ
value through profit or loss Hiix &z Wz
(BB)F8E 444 (41)
Other revenue and other income H U A R E At U 2= 11 350 258
Administrative and other operating expenses 17 B & H ‘& & %7 (5,163) (6,252)
Finance costs BE AR 12 - (402)
Loss before taxation MRt Bl 5 18 13 (8,889) (45,004)
Income tax credit FEHEL 15 191 489
Loss and total comprehensive loss REEXRATEEA
for the year attributable to owners ZEBERZEERLHE
of the Company (8,698) (44,515)
HK cents HK cents
B BN
Loss per share BREE 16
Basic and diluted HAREE (0.68) (3.50)
Dividend RE Nil & Nil £

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B&Mi Ki sFiE AL X E 424 B R & M AR 5 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31* March, 2021
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e B BARRR

R=ZZT=_—F=A=1+—8H

2021 2020
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
Bz FET FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME HEkRE 17 - =
Current assets nBEE
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFERERIRY R
profit or loss CHBEE 18 101,302 103,800
Amounts due from investee companies JE W% & N BB 19 - 2,275
Amounts due from related companies i) NG 20 810 1,408
Deposits b 66 66
Other investment Hix & 21 1,083 639
Cash and bank balances Re RRTTEH 22 1,772 5,745
105,033 113,933
Current liability poEIh=K
Accruals &R (347) (358)
Net current assets REBEEFRE 104,686 113,575
Total assets less current liability BEEBERRBAE 104,686 113,575
Non-current liability kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EXERBEE 23 - (191)
Net assets BEEFHAE 104,686 113,384
Capital and reserves BERRFEE
Share capital fig 2 24 12,717 12,717
Reserves & 91,969 100,667
Total equity MR 104,686 113,384
Net asset value per share (HKS) BREEFE(ET) 25 0.08 0.09

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 22" June, 2021 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Wong Yun Kuen
Executive Director
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Cheng Wai Lun, Andrew
Executive Director e D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HRERZETHR

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
Retained
earnings/
Share Share  (accumulated
capital premium losses) Total
REBAN/
TS REE ZitER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET FET
As at 1%t April, 2019 RIZ-NEMA-B&R 12,717 107,217 37,965 157,899
Loss for the year AEEBE ] —\ ] —\ ] (Mﬁwﬂ ] (Mﬁww
Total comprehensive loss for the year rEEZAERESR - = (44,515) (44,515)
As at 31 March, 2020 and W-E-FE=A=+-BR
15t April, 2020 “E-ZENA-HEH 12,717 107,217 (6,550) 113,384
Loss for the year TEEBR ’ - ‘ ’ = ‘ ’ (8,698) ‘ ’ (8,698) ‘
Total comprehensive loss for the year TEERABERER - - (8,698) (8,698)
As at 31! March, 2021 R=B=-%

ZR=t-R&#H 12,717 107,217 (15,248) 104,686




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

Annual Report 2021 43§

RERERBR

BE_T-_—F=A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bz FE FET
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBRER
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation BRI . (8,889) (45,004)
Adjustments for: 25 MBS AELRAE
Bank interest income SRITHI B U A 11 —* (258)
Interest expenses LS % 12 - 402
Dividend income IS PN N 9 (3,695) (3,889)
(Reversal of)/allowance for expected EHHR & R AFKIE L HHEE
credit loss on amounts due from BENEE(BRE) BE
investee companies N 13 (315) 13
Net realised loss on financial assets 22 FER B &I & 2 475
at fair value through profit or loss BEZCEBEEFE 10 5,287 =
Net unrealised loss on financial BROFENBRRIR 2%
assets at fair value through profit BEZAREBHBERE
or loss ) ) 10 2,928 41,900
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on other R AFEREREIKR AT
investment at fair value through "8 s RBH (Wa),/
profit or loss BEREE (444) 41
Operating cash flows before working ZE& S ZBAMNLER S RE
capital changes e . (5,128) (6,495)
Increase in financial assets at fair ~ EAFEREEINEZHBEEE
value through profit or loss 2387 N (5,717) (17,448)
Decrease in amounts due from FEULI% & 1 B FRIE R A
investee companies I 2,590 =
Decrease in amounts due from ek UNEIE b
related companies . . 598 226
(Decrease)/increase in accruals EREBAZCRL) /#HEn (11) 4
Cash used in operations RELRERCES (7,668) (23,713)
Interest received 2 I F 8 - 258
Interest paid BAFE - (402)
Net cash used in operating activities EEXKER 2R & FE (7,668) (23,857)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEBH BHERH
ACTIVITY
Dividend received Bk R 3,695 3,889
Net cash generated from RETHEEZRSFME
investing activity 3,695 3,889
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND RERAELZEYZRD
CASH EQUIVALENTS FE (3,973) (19,968)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S¥zBH&RBELEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5,745 25,713
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SARzBHE&RELEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 22 1,772 5,745
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCE OF B&NBREESEBYEH I
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balance & RIRITRER

* The amount is less than HK$1,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

GENERAL

UBA Investments Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309.
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is Flat B, 16th Floor,
Wah Kit Commercial Centre, 300 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are engaged in investment holding and trading of
securities.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the

Company and all values (including comparative information) are
rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

—REBHE

HARERRAR (TARAD H—ERHA
EHREFMKIEREE L AR - HR
DREBHMARXSMARDA (M)
e AR FE zEMitit AP.O. Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands ° AR A Z T E &
EE AR A EHETRI00RERFEFR L
161EB%E ©

AABREMBAR (RREAIREE]) S

AEEEMBREIABT (BT IR
BLNMRARBZNEES MEmE=
BN ABE(BRERER) GHEE
BEAZ TR (TET) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year. the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the current year for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

2.

RETEBYBEREER

AEERHFERZ B RV BREER BT

RAEE  ARECRRREAMBRERE
RRBRAFERE B LR BEHF
HEEREET ERB R IER LA
ARATHERBGMAE (BB
RENBEMZEBRBEREER 2B

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material EBSHELFIRREE BATE
(Amendments) 5 R E8SE (BATA)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business BB RS R FE35E HEETEE
(BEIA)
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark BB TGRS ER|Fo58 - &=
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Reform ER e ERIFE39% & gE

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and amendments to HKFRSs

in the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

BEREMBHREENFETHR
CHEN)

REBEHEHEERNIELZ B HER
ZEFTARB BB REERETAE X
R AW BREMBEAEERNSTER I
AFEZGEARBRAREER/ SRE
VTEELEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

3. NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

e MR MEE

BE 2 —=A=1+—HItEE

EEMERERERBHET REBTER
B 7% 3 o5 2 B

AEEYERFEAATEEMERRE
MR BT BT BRHHRELER

effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related Amendments'

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions*

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond
30" June, 2021°

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)

HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 16 (Amendments)
HKAS 37 (Amendments)

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020°

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current and related amendments to International
Interpretation 5 (2020)"

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction'

Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before
Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combination?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1t January, 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1t January, 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1t June, 2020.

that*the application of the
e-no-material.impact

BRMBREEUE7R
ERMBREERF 1635
(B3 %)
ERAMBREEF 163
(B51%)

BRMBREER IR
(B3 %)
ERUBREEAFR -
BAGHERE9% -
BRMBREEAETH
BEMBRGERFS
RRBEHBREER
F163% (BT X)
ERMBREEF10R
REA G285

(B3 %)
BRMBREED
(B3 %)
BRGTENE R
CHES)
BRGHERRIRR
BRMBHSEANEH

CEVSACTHES
EREHERSSH
(B3 %)
BRGHENZ 125
(B3 %)

BRGHERE 163
(B3 %)
EOERREIERT
(BF%)
EEREEESS
(B3T%)

RBAYORERET
0198 REREEHR
s
“E--ERA=tR%
20198 M mE R 54
BHsERS
£BTR

MREEYE - FOBRS

REEREBRENRRA
RV HANEELE
T ES

BB RS %ER2018F
Z2020F 2 F B i

BEAEARSRERD
NREBREEH
(2020%) 2 BEIERT!

SHERBE

giftrties

HE-RHMELL
BENRREARY
EREHE

nx - BERRE-{F
R RR A AR

BRaN-EiTalH
RA

AREHAHNAGET
i

T RZB_=F- - HRZEKRBNEE

R -

2 RZZE_—F—F—HAZERRNEE

B -

. GEERHRIICEABLNEFEE

gﬁﬁﬁi@ °

¢ RIZECRERNA-BRZERABNEE

/HHFEﬁEW °

S RE_—F- A BHIKRBENFE

B -

¢ R —FUNA-HRZERBNFEE

,HﬂFEﬁEW °
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e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(*HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL") and other investment are stated at fair
value and on the basis that the Group is a going concern.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value

but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2

Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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4.

RAUEERTEEHER

RAZEHEAVBRRAERAZIERES
BEREIMT - ZFRREDEBERRET
EWMIBEE -

(a) RREXE
A ARBRRIZBEEGTFEL
SRHCBEANGREEAMBER -
EARAFARRERELGMAGHE
VZAAERNERNRENBREE
Bl - BRGHER(FEEGFEL])
REZRE BERARGHRA - Nz
AMBRENTEERRARSHME
RAFTKEZ EMHRAD ([ EmRA)
ERBRGEXOBRTEREER AR
ZERBRE - AR AU BBREDRE
BLRATRERE  ERQAFER
BaRIIRz MBEE ([RAFER
BRI RAMKRERDFED
BERBAEEZBELEREE -

I e R — R IR 1 RIR B 5 5
BF2REZATEIE -

AFEATBERENTRANES
FR S EAETRURIHRE
B (2 B - FRRERRT
EERETERER 2 EHEE
it - A AER BB ATEN
AEEEEDS S REEH EABS
BAESRBRITEERSEEE
BEARABRSH - ERSEAVHR
RFHEN/ARBHAFEYEY
EREF BT BB BRSE
I 2% T IAIRAS 2 1 B0 10 2 A
HERANES  BEUBREEE
163/ HE/ BEAZBER HH RS
AFEABEL AT B E (5]
0 B 2 ) 28 [ s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

=1113
Mg

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. HFEEERFTES
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Basis of preparation (continued)

TBUR ()

(a) wREEE)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’'s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition
the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2. fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation

techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are not

based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

FHBEENRFEFEZRTMS
2EERBBEAEENRSNKER
BEBANERS UREEETE
REERNREREOMELEER
EERENZRARES -

HRARFEETRZNERTA
URERERAREEREBXBRIN
BAERFEQAFENGBERN &
ERMETRE - REE LR
B AERTMHNERERRSEE -

AN RUMBBETE - ATEHE
BB TE 808 ARETBRE
ERAFE E0EARRYLER
WEEHHBRE—F B_BRE
= ST

ATEFERBIBRAER
mEHRAEELARYZ
CRIGHE) RE

AFEFERRER/RER
i BREEEXIAES
AFBERT BWCEM
ABENRFE

AVEFERBREM/ER
i BEwRTEERXBEES
AMBEARY B
AR REBED SR
(TABENHA)

Rtk
[11
18]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (b)

RAEERTEZETUR(F)

FAIRE 2 EE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

BEMBHRREBARRAURZAR
) B EL Y 8 m) 15 ) B B8 O B S R
Ko ARARETIER T HEEHIE -

o HHERBEHRITEES:

s HRE2ERBUSMAZMOR
AERBRIZEEN R

e HRABBTERIXFEAD

o

ERFERBRBERA L =BEEHRE
ERE-BIZALHAE (L KEE
HEMFEEEERHREHRERE
il o

SAMBARNIRE AT ARAS
ERGEZMBLRNEGBEERE
BIREZM B ARG - A58
mE  EFEMUBRLENNER
AHBA R - B A& BEREZH
BLRAMEZEH R AEEEARER
ERMBRARMEHEZ AL A
GABRRMAMEZERER

MARE  BHHBA AN BHHE
(S NERIHRERASE
VR HE—H -

AEBKRBRAZEANRZMI R
MEERRRIFMEEERRAR #
@ WA AXRREREINES
FREEEEEE -




BT UcA (NVESTMENTS LIMITED BB & AR A =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’'s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or joint venture.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the assets to working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul cost, is
normally charged to the profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated
that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of
an item of property, plant and equipment, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using

S he straight-line method. The annual rate used for furniture,

i

—

equipment is 20%. The estimated useful lives,

RAEERTES

e MR MEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

=113

TBUR ()

(b) SAEEZEEE)

(c)

HAEHARERERBEZHER
AERZEARERHTAA
o EMARBEGS AR ZER
RIFERES 2 @ BARREEEE

Bk EE

EAKEREY M B R ERE
B AIAHEZMBLR z 25 # R
HAARR: MAEEZBELERTS
RIBZARER - EREREEREZ
RREZAIM B AR 2 e DR R
FERER M8 HRE S0
R—MBEEZAVE & (WER)
BRANRER - BELRARGED
EREZHA

MR BEBERRE

ME - BB RREAKRREERB
EREMREBRIIR —BHE -
BELRBEBZRABEEBARE
ERZEEEEESERERERE
Rz TS R ERERER
BRA - ZE BENRBEERE
EZRX  BREEELRERREK
A —REEELZPEERAKT
kg - MERBEBRIEBAXER
FERZMFE - HaEE k&M BT Al B
BZARREERGABFTEN - ABR
FAX TURER  ERZEEZBI
P o

ME  BBERREMEUNERERE
BATAIRF A - KA K
BERRBZFENEETR20% - 5t 7]
ERFEH MRBERMENESHE
EHREMRER LRBRARERE

HEMRGAESH HELETER - 226%%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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(d)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. HFEEERFTES
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)

TBUR ()

(d EWIAE)
HHBEEE
HBEEEZDEREEE

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

7 AR R A R
A E

s RAMBEENEBHRANBRE
REBRASNRERE R

s BHBFREERHELAZER
XA ERREEAS OB
Bem -

A TR OB EERERRAY
EREM2ERETIR((ZAFER
Htp 2B adIfR]) -

s PAMBEAENEBRANAR
AAEERAAORSRREE
53

o BHBFREERHELAZER
XA ERREERS OB
Bem -

AERMMEEEAERROTER
Badlk o

WETIER  HBEEDSBAR

FEE :

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of e HBAXZHMNAREHAH
selling in the near term; or €5

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit
taking; or

.« ARSERBEAAEEER
MEMIAZEBRIEAL—H
CEEEE T Yl T
25

ERABEEZTETARAA
MEREHTA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that is required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

(ii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
from such investment continue to be recognised in profit

—
N ) g .
k\\\\\\“ or loss as revenue when the group’s rights to recel\%

\ payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R RME

For the year ended 31 March, 2021 HE-Z-—F=-A=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. GHREERIETEHE(Z)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued) (d £®MIEE)
Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets ABEEZRE
The Group performs impairment assessment under expected AEERERHEESE((BHEE
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets which are EBRDEARERES SV HREE
subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The A EOSE TR BT A T & E 1T
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect WET L BHEEEENSENS
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. BERREHN  URMEERERL

WiEERRES -

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from FEMBHEEBEEHEBEBELA
all possible default events over the expected life of the Bt FHANAARENEHMER
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") HIEEEEEE - Ak - 1218 B 78 &
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to EEEB((12@AEREEBE]) &
result from default events that are possible within 12 months R ERE A BB 12E A AT gL R
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the MENEHERNGEEDRESEES
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors BE—H5 s EEREAEENBRT
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions EEEBRLEREL  UREKAKTE
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the Az BELERALEEBBRRT
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions. RS B & fil B A R AR 5 T8R4 1 78
2,
The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12m REBGFESEM2EABHEEBE
ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase in MEERE BRIEBE A BERESE
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group E AN A AEBEBERT
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime BHEHEEERE HREERRRT
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases EHEBEERENTGE  EREE
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial RERBEEELNN R ERA
recognition. TR o
(i)  Significant increase in credit risk () EEERAELZN
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased it B B AEREE SRR T
significantly since initial recognition, the Group BARIBEME > REB BT
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial BRiRE AR A E N RRE
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a ERIAENBABRAMELR
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the KB EBETTIEER » EEH AT
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, - AEBZEEABET AR
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative NEENEEER @ BEBEL
%“‘/“/\"T ~ .- information that is reasonable and supportable, Bk ETBEKANKS B E

ing historical experience and forward-looking BRAEEER -
. ailable without undue cost or effort.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

e  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk

———
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UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED B #R & 5 R A =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31 March, 2021 HE-Z-—F=-A=+—HIEFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. REEHERTESHUE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued) (d £®MIEE)
Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) HEEEZRE(E)
(i) Definition of default (i) EXTE

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
accountancy collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

—
O
=

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—
o
-~

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

RABEERREENS @ EX
B AR SRS BB AR IS O B AL
RPBEH AT KA REEA
(BRAKHE) BENZE A%
ERREELENENH(EFL
ARARERA 2 EMERR) o

N EXFri - ERBEERM
HBE0RE  ARERARAEELE
EBH BRFAEBAAEAXSE
MENEREEARAERRDN
BHRE-

EEERENYFEE

ERLE-HSSZHENFH B
HHEBENGBHAXRERER
BRETER ARBEECE
ERE - MBEECEEREN
BEORABATEHNTEE

B

(@) BITAZERABBREKX
P mEE

(b) BERAH MmERLEH
£

(c) HhMERfEFRA BB 75 N B
ARANKELANRA
fERARMERARERA
REBERAEEMERT
TEEZENRER

(d) ERARAEBRENET
HuHBEd %

RUMBEEZERM SR
HBEEEMIHEX -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data and forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. RRHERITTENHE(£)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued) (d) £@MIAE)
Financial assets (continued) HBEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) HHBEEEZ E(E)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

(v) BHEEERERER (E)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting

their carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)

FHEEREBRHRE(H)

(d &BMIAE)

Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accruals are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelle
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. GHREERIETEHE(Z)
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Cash and cash equivalents (e) ReRHEEZEEY

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, MEcsReRBERmMs  Be kB S

cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and SEVEEFERSRESES U

demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investment RoERERSENEEReAEE

which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and gyREn s AR EREHRE

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, REEAE—BRE=MBANT TR

and have a short maturity of generally within three months EBREREETEXNAEBIRESE

when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable BZHAKEG ZRITES -

on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash

management.

(f) Foreign currency translation (f) HErE

(i) Functional and presentation currency (i) BRI RE #
ltems included in the financial statements of each of KEBET AR ZMBEHRERAT
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of BFEHRABEBAAREEMEZ
the primary economic environment in which the entity BEIRIE Y AAE ([Tag
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated B REtE B - R TBW
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, RABBLIER BB AKRNGZ
which is the Company’s functional and presentation WEERIEEE -
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances (i) XBRZE
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the INERFERHER 2 IEXH R
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing ANREEE FAEERHRIEF
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange HHERBEINEEENBER
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of EEZINEW R REEHIIAE
such transactions and from the translation at yearend iR ©

exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
profit or loss.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(f) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from
the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(c) the resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange reserve.

(g) Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4.
POLICIES (continued)
(g) Taxation (continued) (9)

RAEERTZETUR(F)

B (&)

e

=

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in when the liability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e MR RME

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. RFEHERITEHWE (£)
POLICIES (continued)
(h) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(h) BERIREE

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. Where it is not probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed

WEAKEARBEZ SHAELR
FEEEE MABRTEEAISRE
BREZRL - YAIHEEz2RBIE
A S 2 fhEr o AR RS o

WERELHREBEX  BEAN
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B NBRERSLARE  BRIFLEF
iR 2 ATREIERE o

as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

(i) Revenue recognition (i) WAER
(i) Dividend income from equity securities is recognised () FERAEBESFMEEZBREWAL
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have ST BR R MR ER AR B 2 8 B T DA
been established. HR o
(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the (i) FIBMARERFEEZRE
effective interest method. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0]

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of rent of office that have a lease term of 12 months.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(k) Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control of the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of a same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

e ‘ =
A person identified in (a)(i) has significant = (vii)~(a)(i) &
///}\\
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UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BIBBREBR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Other investment
Other investment comprises of investment in silver bullion.
The silver bullion is carried at fair value through profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the

nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(n) Employees benefits

(0)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution
retirement benefit plans are charged to profit or loss in the
year incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting
fully in the contributions. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

Pension obligations

The Group participates a defined contribution mandatory
provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which is
available to all employees. Contributions to the MPF Scheme
by the Group and its employees are calculated based on
a percentage of employees’ relevant income. The Group’s
contributions to the fund are incurred as expenses and the
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administrated fund.

Payments to the Group’'s MPF Scheme are charged as
expenses as they fall due.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BIBBREBR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

4.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other revenue”.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 5. BARESHEFRAE(E)

(continued)

Fair value measurement of Level 3 Financial Instruments
Certain of the Group’s financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$1,754,000 as at 31t March, 2021 (2020: HK$12,635,000) are
measured at fair values with fair values being determined based
on significant unobservable inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgment and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant in puts thereof. Changes in
assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair
values of these instruments. See Note 8(b) for further disclosures.

Provision of ECL for amounts due from investee companies/
related companies

The loss allowances for amounts due from investee companies/
related companies are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgment in making
these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and amounts due from
investee companies/related companies are disclosed in Notes
8(a), 19 and 20 respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity reserves
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, share premium and retained earnings/accumulated losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends and new share issues.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 7.
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

ERMIADE
EEEMIANBREHRZEEENT :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

7

2021 —E-—F
Financial assets MEEE
Amortised
cost FVTPL Total
BAFER
8 R EEIRYI R gt
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FRET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEREBREIERZ
s EE - 101,302 101,302
Amounts due from related companies e NCIE O 810 - 810
Deposits b 66 - 66
Other investment Hix & - 1,083 1,083
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHEHR 1,772 - 1,772
2,648 102,385 105,033
Financial liability B S=K
Amortised
cost
8 R AR
HK$°000
FET
Accruals e & 347

e

77—~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e MR RME

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 7. SRIBEDE(E)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BHECRIANBESRRZERENT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (&)
(continued)
2020 —T_TF
Financial assets MBEE
Amortised
cost FVTPL Total
BATER
55K AR BRI B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FHET FHET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL BEATERERERSIERZ
MBEE - 103,800 103,800
Amounts due from investee companies EWIRE A RIFIA 2,275 = 2,275
Amounts due from related companies FE N B A RIFRIB 1,408 - 1,408
Deposits g 66 - 66
Other investment HApig & - 639 639
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHEHS 5,745 - 5,745
9,494 104,439 113,933
Financial liability BBaE
Amortised
cost
SRR
HK$000
FHET
Accruals FANE-di 358
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 8. HiEEMEEEERBE
(a) Financial risk factors (a) BEEREZR
The Group’s major financial instruments comprise amounts AEBZFTESR T EBERKKR
due from investee companies, amounts due from related BN SIE - FEUWEEEE A B R IR
companies, deposits, financial assets at FVTPL, other & BRATFERERERINRZVEE
investment and cash and bank balances and accruals. E -EMRERRERBTESKE
&R -

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: =
equity price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses

on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks i

minimise potential adverse effects on the Gro inancial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. HXHERETEEERIEEE)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HERABREE(Z)
(i)  Equity price risk () BREEHERE
The Group are exposed to equity price risk through AEBRERARAZ R 2IE
its investment in equity securities measured at FVTPL. (RAFENBZRERYIER) mmL
These are susceptible to equity price risk arising from BABRER ZEEFBHX
uncertainties about the future prices of the instrument. IRAEBEREARTZE  MiZzE
The Group’s equity price risk is managed through R AR EZET B2 RR(E
diversification of the investment portfolio ratios by BEBZTREREMES - K
exposures. SEZRAERRREBIER
BETE 2 REEE LTS
LER -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every TRWRBEAZSEZATLES
20% change in the fair values of the equity securities, 20%ZE s HRE (e EmE
with all other variables held constant, based on their HREFELE) RERKEHK
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. ZEHEE -

Increase/  (Decrease)/

(decrease) increase in Increase/
in fair  loss before (decrease)
value taxation in equity

AYEZ BHABEZ i
gm/(8d)  ED)/%&m &/ CHD)
% HK$’000 HK$°000
=51 FET FET
2021 —B--F
Equity securities investment:  BRAZFHIKE :
- Financial assets at FVTPL —BRATENER RS
2B EE 20 (20,260) 16,917
(20) 20,260 (16,917)
2020 —E-FTF
Equity securities investment: ~ BRAZEHFKRE :
- Financial assets at FVTPL —BATFERERESE
ZHBEE 20 (20,760) 17,335

(20) 20,760 (17,335)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MEERMEEBEZERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BERBEZEZ)
(i)  Equity price risk (continued) () KREERERE ()
Concentration of equity price risk may arise if the MRAEEREEAENRERS
Group has a significant investment in a single equity —RERE  BRABREFRER
investment. At the end of the reporting period, the Group AREEL RBEEHR A5
has a certain concentration risks in six (2020: six) equity EE NERERESAEETER
investment which account for more than 5% of the total Bk (T -ZFF: NH)  hA
assets of the Group. SEBEEIS%AE -

% of total assets of the Group

EAREEREEZEDL

2021 2020

PCCW Limited EANBMAERRAA 24.19% 21.74%
Bank of China Limited FERITIRDBR A A 12.96% 11.99%
Kwong Man Kee Group Limited BXZEEERRAA 12.14% 12.38%
MTR Corporation Limited BAEHKER AR 7.71% 6.26%
Shen You Holdings Limited REZERER AR 7.38% N/A 7~ B
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. REIE/THMD R A A 5.65% N/A i
Diamond Motto Limited Diamond Motto Limited N/A & f* 7.99%
Gemilang International Limited ZIEBE R AR A A N/A T3 A 5.26%
* At the end of each reporting period, these equity * EEEREHKR - BLRER
investment account for less than 5% of the total assets of B B 808 BE B R B

the Group.

5% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS e R RME

For the year ended 31 March, 2021 HE-Z-—F=-A=+—HIEFE

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. HMXRAREEBEEREE(Z)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HERABREE(Z)
(ii) Credit risk (i) EERERE

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the
risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts
in full when due. Impairment provisions are provided
for losses that have been incurred by the end of the
reporting period, if any. The Group is responsible for
monitoring the amount of credit exposure to investee
companies and related companies.

ECL assessment on amounts due from investee
companies/related companies

Amounts due from investee companies/related
companies are assessed on the base of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude
of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. The management believes that there are
no significant increase in credit risk of amounts due
from related companies since initial recognition and
the Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.
The management assessed that there are significant
increase in credit risk of amounts due from investee
companies since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on lifetime ECL. The
expected credit loss rate for amount due from investee
companies for the year ended 31t March, 2020 is
12.16%.

The reversal of ECL made to amounts due from investee
companies during the years ended 315 March, 2021 was
approximately HK$315,000 (2020: allowance of ECL was
approximately HK$313,000).

Management does not expect that amount due from

AEEEH EERRTIR 5 Y
73 1A 2 B B B R N FROR
ZEE - RBEHREELEZEH
B(E) eERERESRER - &
SEARERHEMNRERRAR
BB DR EZ FERRE -

JEWIRE L ] R Al B2
BRI EEBTE

WIS E 1 A),/ BB R A SR IER
BEOBE BHBRX(BWE
ERAOBHIBAEE) RELOR
B - HIREE B BB MG R
FIEEN D EMEMESTE (M
BEBNOMERIEREE) - B
BERE BVBRERNAR &
W R A R RIERE B AR &
BELEN AEEREI12EATE
HiEEBBRTRRE  ERET
HRA - BYRERAR - B
RERAFRBHEERREZ
#i AEBREEHESREE
EEHRAE BET_TF
ZRA=+-HILFERREE
NAIRECHBEEBEEXA
12.16% °

BE-_T-_—&H=F=+—-Hit
FERBLEREKIRENRIFIE
T8 {5 B & 18 4 /315,000 7T
(ZZ-ZF BEHEEFBE
#8549 5313,00087T) °
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HREMBEEHERYL BHERE
B -




Annual Report 2021 44

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MEERMEEBEZERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BERBEZEZ)
(ii) Credit risk (continued) (i) EEREE (&)
ECL assessment on amounts due from investee FERIRE L 5] L Al B2
companies/related companies (continued) B EERBE (E)
The following table shows the movement in ECL that TRITBE-MRERERKE
has been recognised for amounts due from investee REFIBERRA BB EEHEE
companies under the general approach. g o

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
ZHES 2HTEH
FEFSE FEFE
(LEEERHE) (EEERHAE) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FAET FHET FHET
As at 1¢t April, 2019 RZE-NEMA—A 2 9,796 9,798
Impairment losses recognised ERAREESR 313 = 313
As at 31 March, 2020 and R-E-_TF=ZA=+-HEK
1t April, 2020 “Z-ZFNA—H 315 9,796 10,111
Impairment losses reversed ERRREESSE (315) - (315)

As at 31¢t March, 2021 RZEZ-&=H=1+-H - 9,796 9,796
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. HXHERETEEERIEEE)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HERABREE(Z)

(ii) Credit risk (continued)

Bank balances

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with bank deposits since they are
substantially deposit at medium or large-size listed
banks. The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks and the
credit risk is low. Thus, no loss allowance is recognised.

ECL assessment on deposits

For deposits, the management makes periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there are no significant
increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based
on 12m ECL. For the years ended 31¢ March, 2021 and
2020, the Group assessed the ECL for deposits are
insignificant and thus no loss allowance is recognised.

(i) EEmEE (&)
RiThEE:
AKER  ARRITEREER
REPHIAR FMRTNGE
FoRETEEEANEER
b - RITHEBNEERRER
RAAR ST ZEERFHIERT -
FEERBRAE - Bt - WERER
BEEE-

BE MRS EERE
MRemE  EEERBEAALS
Btk KB URBRAER
BEEIFHAMEERERZE
ENEHEMME RSO
Bl 14 F B AT R BT (Y - BIE/E
15 - BVIRTERAR « ER
EREERRIEIARELMN - K
SERBEICEAEHEEESR
FHREE  BEE-T = —F=
B=+t—-BR-_Z-ZH=H
=tT—HIEFEMS - AEET
fmReEMNEREEEREN A
I AR TR B R A
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For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MEERMEEBEZERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BERBEZEZ)
(iii) Liquidity risk (i) TEEZERE

For the years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020, the HE-_ZTZ-_—#=A=+—H

Group invests in both listed and unlisted securities N—E-_TF=ZA=+—HIt

which are classified as financial assets at FVTPL. Those FE AEERER EMRIEL

listed securities excluded suspended trading securities TMEES  DoBARATE

are considered readily realisable as they are listed in RERBIRZHBEE - R

regulated stock exchanges. Those suspended trading ZELTRE (TEEEEES

securities and unlisted securities may not be traded in BRIEXREZESRR ST L

an organised public market and may be illiquid. As a T BERESNER - %FY

result, the Group may not be able to liquidate quickly its BFEEBRLERIEEMESA I

investment in these instruments at an amount close to FRERTEZ AHMSEE -

their fair value in order to meet its liquidity requirements BRBEAENIE Al A%

or to respond to specific events such as deterioration B EENEINETART

in the creditworthiness of any particular issuer. Prudent BREAREENLETAY

liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient ®E UENAEB 2 RBES

cash and marketable securities, the availability of FEYEEREEMH (P mEMR

funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities BEETAZEEKERL) -

and the ability to close out market positions. BEZRHECRRERE - B

ERRERARENEEES B
BRERBZEERENERA
HBRES  REEMEETZ

EI
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMASIANEE 2 HEEE
contractual maturity for their financial liabilities. For ZEBTNENEME o SLIEITER
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been BEBEMES @ ZXUAREER
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of the BYNHRz&EREBHZUMBAR
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which JABBES R AEEEMR
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes o ZRBENERTERLR

both interest and principal cash flows. g o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MBEAMEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) FERABRREZ(Z)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) HBELERE (&)
Total
Less than 1to 3 months undiscounted Carrying
1 month 3 months to1year  cash flows amount
REBERE
SRR 12387 3fEREIE MELRE REE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

2021 ZEZ-F
Non-derivative financial ~ ¥4 BKERE

liability
Accruals R ER 5 - 342 347 347
2020 k23
Non-derivative financial FTERBEE

liability
Accruals EftER 5 - 353 358 358

(iv) Interest rate risk (iv) FIZFE

The Group has no interest-bearing financial liabilities at RRERER  AEBVENKE
the end of the reporting period. The Group only exposes BZNEEE - AEEEBmYF
to changes in interest rates to their interest-bearing REH T EH LR ITEHFR
short-term bank deposits. ZHIE .
Due to the fact that the changes in interest rates would SEL aRAENE(LTeY
have no material impact on the results of the Group REBEEAEEATE By
and accordingly, the sensitivity analysis in respect of SRR BRI RS 2 RS

changes in interest rate is not presented. i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MEERMEEBEZERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (b) ~¥E
(i)  Fair value hierarchy () AFEZR
As at 31%t March, 2021 and 2020, the Group held the HE-_ZTZ-_—F=A=+—HK
following financial instruments measured at fair value: —E-TF=ZA=+—H &%
ERBUTRATEFENS R
TA:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—IE B_fE E=E @t

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FETT FET FET FET

2021 —E-—-F
Financial assets MKEE
- Financial assets at FVTPL - AFEREBRE

SR BB E 99,548 - 1,754 101,302
— Other investment —HtkE 1,083 = = 1,083

100,631 - 1,754 102,385

2020 —E_TF
Financial assets MEEE
— Financial assets at FVTPL — R RAFEREBERE

SR 2 BI B 91,165 - 12,635 103,800
— Other investment —EMiRE 639 = = 639

91,804 = 12,635 104,439




UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BB REER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MBEAMEEBEERBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (b) A¥E
(i) Fair value hierarchy (i) RFEZR
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair E-EAFENEMAZGEBEE
value measurements within Level 3 is as follows: REAEQT :
Valuation Significant
Fair value Fairvalue  technique unobservable inputs
NYE RYE fEE EAFUBRGAE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Financial assets at FVTPL

BAVERRRRIIRZHHEE

- Suspended trading securities 304 - Business valuation: Discount of lack of marketability
listed in Hong Kong Market approach (“DLOM”): 11% (2020: N/A)
-REBLTEREERS (Note i) Price-to-earnings (“P/E”) multiple:
NERHE  TRE (W) 15.98x (2020: N/A)

Enterprise values-to-eamings before
interest, taxes, depreciation, and
amortization

(“EV/EBITDA") multiple: 12.10x
(2020: N/A)

B EHLE TR (TDLOM]) 1%
(Z222%: TER)
mEHRR ([PE]) B : 15.98(5
(ZE-Z5: TER)
PREEUBNE RE FE
MEHFZ 7 (TEVEBITDA))
- 12,105

(Z222%: TER)

- Unlisted equity investment 1,450 12,635  Business valuation: DLOM: 27% (2020: 31%)
—FEHRARE Market approach PJE multiple:
(Note ii) 21.37x (2020: 17.50x)

AAFHE « TRE Enterprise values-to-sales

(Hiitii) ("EV/S") multiple: 0.82x

(2020: 0.55x-1.24x)

DLOM : 27%

(ZE-FF:31%)

PIEfEE : 21.371%

(B =% : 17.50(8)
PEBEHHE(EV/S)) B -
0825 (25 =% %
0.55%%-1.241%)

— S Put option: Risk-free interest rate: N/A
= /\—\\\\ Binomial model (2020: 0.60%)
?" / Pfi’%f/—\\\\ (Note i) Volatility: N/A (2020; 69%)
7 Zil=— S LB BERHIE : TR
/ = — BB (f#ti) (ZE=2%:060% ﬁ'

= N S

=
—

_ e —— S
. —— @ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. MEERMEEBEZERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued) (b) AFE(E)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AFEERE)
Notes: Kt -

An increase in the DLOM used in isolation would
result in a decrease in the fair value measurement of
the suspended trading securities and vice versa. A
10% increase or decrease in the DLOM, holding all
other variables constant, would decrease or increase
the fair value of the suspended trading securities by
approximately HK$34,000 and HK$34,000 for the year
ended 31t March 2021.

An increase in the P/E multiples used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
the suspended trading securities and vice versa. A 10%
increase or decrease in the P/E multiples, holding all
other variables constant, would increase or decrease
the fair value of the suspended trading securities by
approximately HK$8,442,000 and HK$8,442,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

An increase in the EV/EBITDA multiples used in
isolation would result in an increase in the fair value
measurement of the suspended trading securities and
vice versa. A 10% increase or decrease in the EV/EBITDA
multiples, holding all other variables constant, would
increase or decrease the fair value of the suspended
trading securities by approximately HK$7,290,000 and
HK$7,290,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021.

2B H 3R AIDLOMIE N i & 5
BEEEEFMATETER
D R Z I - FEDLOMIE 1N
kR D 10%1m T b 2 &R
BAEZER BEZTZ—
FZA=+-BLEEEEFEE
EEBFHATER D RIR DK
2 JN4734,0007% 7T 1 34,0007
=

B R MP/ERE UL g E
BEEEEEFNAFENE
EN - RZ A o EPIER
AN D 10%m T A H 1 &
FRETEZEN  HEZZ
——FZA=t+HALEEE
FEEEFNAFEED I
IR D 498,442,000 T K
8,442,000/ 7T °

B 5 i 37 AEV/EBITDAS #1138
MEEBREEEEEHFMNA
FEGELMN RZMA &
EV/EBITDAfE 2k 3 fn s g
10% M AT E fh B R IFTE
Z2EBR BE-_E-—%€=A8
ST HLEFEEEEERS
BN FERE D B MR 2 4
7,290,000/ 7T }7,290,0007%
5




UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BB REER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. HERREEBEERMEK(Z)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued) (b) AFEE)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () AFESRE)
Notes: (continued) Wt (&)
(i) Anincrease in the DLOM used in isolation would result in (i) 2% H 3 KDLOMIE i i#% & 2

a decrease in the fair value measurement of the unlisted
equity investment and vice versa. A 10% increase
or decrease in the DLOM, holding all other variables
constant, would decrease or increase the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment by approximately HK$198,000
and HK$198,000 respectively (2020: HK$644,000 and
HK$644,000).

An increase in the P/E multiples used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity investment and vice versa. A 10%
increase or decrease in the P/E multiples, holding all
other variables constant, would increase or decrease
the fair value of the unlisted equity investment by
approximately HK$40,000 and HK$40,000 respectively
(2020: HK$142,000 and HK$142,000).

An increase in the EV/S multiples used in isolation would
result in an increase in the fair value measurement of
the unlisted equity investment and vice versa. A 10%
increase or decrease in the EV/S multiples, holding all
other variables constant, would increase or decrease
the fair value of the unlisted equity investment by
approximately HK$116,000 and HK$116,000 respectively
(2020: HK$388,000 and HK$388,000).

FELEMRABENRFEE
WA Rz IR © FEDLOMIE
ISR A 10% M BT A H 4 2
RETEZER  ELTRA
BEKATER D B ok
1N#7198,0004% 7T & 198,000
T (ZZZZF : 644,000 T
644,000 7T) °

B %5 I KP/ERE BUE Mg E
B EMBRAREMN A FER
SN RZ A - FEP/ER
238 Nk A 10%1m BT 8 E b
BYRBETEZER  FELW
AR E B D FE RS BIE M
sl 2 4940,0007% 7T 140,000
BT (ZZZFF 1 142,000
TT & 142,000/ 7T) ©

298 ) 3R MOEV/SHE B I 5
BHELTRARENATE
FEEM RZIMR - EEV/
StE B MR D 10% M FT B
HuBHRBFTE2ER -
ERBRAEENRFEES A
3 08k 37 > 49116,00078 7T K
116,000 T (Z T =T F :

388,000/ 7T % 388,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 8. HBEMEEBERME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued) (b) AFE(E)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AFEERE)
Notes: (continued) Wit (&)

(iii) ~ Anincrease in the risk-free interest rate used in isolation
would result in a decrease in the fair value measurement
of the unlisted equity investment and vice versa. A10%
increase or decrease in the risk-free interest rate,
holding all other variables constant, would decrease or
increase the fair value of the unlisted equity investment by
approximately HK$25,000 and HK$25,000 respectively for
the year ended 315t March, 2020.

An increase in the volatility used in isolation would result
in an increase in the fair value measurement of the
unlisted equity investment and vice versa. A 10%increase
or decrease in the volatility, holding all other variables
constant, would increase or decrease the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment by approximately HK$46,000
and HK$34,000 respectively for the year ended 31
March, 2020.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020, fair
value measurements of certain trading securities have been
transferred from Level 1 to Level 3 because of their suspension
of trading, other than that, there were no transfer of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3.

(i) B IR A &R R 0
BRFLETRABRENATE
HERD  RZMR - EER
B ) & 32 AN sk A 10% M Fr
HiSHRFIE 21BN H
E_E-_FEF=F=+—HIt
FEFLETRARENATE
1 93 BllR 4> 532 1 £925,0007%
7T }.25,000/8 T °

2898 3R MR IR 0 B B
ETRARENRFETE
M RZIA - FER IR ANk
WA 10%1 FT A H fbh & 2R 75
TEZER HE-ZZ-ZF
ZRA=t+—BUEFEFLTR
AEREKATER D B
& ) #746,0007% 7T 1 34,0007
=

FRMEELELZED -

HE_Z-_—SR-T_ZTF=H
=t+—HIEFE BETRHEHFNA
TEFAEEEEEFEEMAE —
BEBZEE=E BRI ATFE
HEREEBEE-—ERE_EN
REANLHRE=IE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
(b) Fair values (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Notes: (continued)

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments
for the years ended 315 March, 2021 and 2020.

RE P BHRRMEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

8. MBEMEEBERBE(E)

(b) AFEE)
(i) AFEEHKE)
st - (&)

TRENE-EIANBE-_T=_—
F=A=+—BER=-ZE=-ZTF=A
=t+—HLEFEZEF -

HK$'000
FET
As at 1t April, 2019 RZZT-NEFENA—H 29,374
Conversion of unlisted convertible debt securities LA ERELE R (12,600)
Net losses FEE
— in profit or loss - REER (4,139)
As at 315t March, 2020 and 1¢' April, 2020 RZE-_TF=A=+—HK
—ZT-ZEFWA—H 12,635
Disposal of unlisted financial assets HEFLTHBEE (3,814)
Transfers into Level 3 (securities suspended on BEREEE-F 304
trading) (EBRFNYEFES)
Net losses EEE
—in profit or loss —ME&ER (7,371)
As at 31% March, 2021 R=B=-—-%=A=+-H 1,754

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other financial instruments

carried at amortised cost are approximately their fair values as
at 31% March, 2021 and 2020.

(i) HAFEUIMEESRZEMT
Az R FiE
RZBEZ—F=A=+—HKZ=
TE-EF=-F=+—H £&£H
RBERASIE 2 LT A
ZEESEARENFEBLY -
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e E|RMEE

BE_T-_—F=A=+—HIFE

9. REVENUE 9. WA
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Dividend income from: BEBWARE :
- Listed equity investment (Note 26) — E R ARES (A1 i226) 3,695 3,889

No analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to operating
profit for the current and prior years set out by principal activities
and geographical markets is provided as the Group has only
one single business segment, investment holding and all the
consolidated revenue and the consolidated results of the Group
are attributable to performance of the markets in Hong Kong.

No information about major customers has been disclosed as
a substantial portion of the Group’s income is derived from the
Group’s investment and the disclosure of information regarding
customers would not be meaningful.

10. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The following is the analysis of net loss on investment of the Group
for the years ended 31 March, 2021 and 2020. The amounts of
realised gain/(loss) represent the fair value difference between
the beginning of the year or purchase date in the year and
the disposal date of financial instruments while the amounts of
unrealised loss represent the change of the fair value during the
year of financial instruments held by the Group as at the year end:

ARAEEREREERE-XH AR
AREMBEGEBARGEEZETRRE
EmS AT EKEEBEBRMED
5 2IAGERFERAFEZRAR

RRERA -

ANAKEZEERSRBABODRERE
@& FFARBREREPHEREL R
ELRBEIERFPAHLERS

10. BRAFERERRIIRZHEEEZE
BFE
N TAAEEHEE _E-_—F=A=1+—
B Z-_TFE=-A=+—HLEENK
EFREBBEIN B8R E /(BB eHE
EFYIREFABERLESHT AR
ZEMATEZE MAZRERLBIE
AEBRFERBENSRIAFEATAE
HEE -

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
(Loss)/gain on financial assets at FVTPL: BATERERRY R %
BEZ(BB) W& -

Listed equity investment FTRAEE
- Realised (Note 26) — B3 (fi7726) 4 (556)
— Unrealised (Note 26) — RER (f17726) (848) (37,761)

Unlisted equity investment
- Realised (Note 26)
- Unrealised (Note 26)

AR e N

— RBR (H1:226) (2,080) (i3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

11. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

RE P BHRRMEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

1. EttARE b

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Other revenue H g A
Bank interest income RITFI 2 WA - 258
Government grant (Note) BUR B (B at) 35 =
35 258

Other income H Al &

Reversal of ECL on amounts due from BERKIKEDNBFIEBELZ

investee companies BHEEERE 315 =

Note:

The Group recognised government grant of approximately HK$35,000
(2020: HK$ nil) which related to Employee Support Scheme provided by
the Hong Kong Government for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

*  The amount is less than HK$1,000.

12. FINANCE COSTS

Wit

* £E D ,0008 T o

12. BERAE

AEBREBE T —F=A=+—HIEE
B BBUN R 2 Rt e 8RBT A
35,0008 (ZE-ZTF : TBT) ©

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FE FET
Interest on other borrowings wholly ERAFANZHEEREL
repayable within five years Hib g2 Fl 82 M - 402

13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

13. BRBiAIEE

BRHABES MR, GIA) T3I%E :

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$°000

FE FHET

Auditors’ remuneration 1o BB M < 252 252
Investment management fee paid to YR TFHEBARZKEEEER

a related company (Note 27) (Hi7#27) 1,621 2,075

—tOSCS, S B o o . s .
= - Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration),

contributions of

BIRA (BREZME)
BRBREH AR

,/¢==§§mm.|@:K&4%® 24,0007 (B2 :

24,0007 7T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 14. EERaAEEENE

(a) The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the (a) KARAREENHE-_ZE-_—FK=-F
years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020 are as follows: —ZFE=ZA=+—BItFEZMEH
BT
Basic
salaries,
housing Discretionary
benefits, bonuses
other and/or
allowances Retirement performance-
and benefits benefits related
Fees inkind contributions bonuses Total
EXge-
EERH-
A28 BRER RERTAR/
e  REWAH R RENEAL @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET FET TET TET FET

For the year ended HE-E--£=8
31% March, 2021 St-HLEE

Executive directors: #
WONG Yun Kuen E
CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew L

TEE:
A 30 - 3 50 83
#fm 30 - 3 50 83

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEE:

directors:
CHAN Chung Yee, Alan B 30 - - 50 80
FUNG Lewis Hung ity 30 - - 50 80
TANG Hon Bui, Ronald BEE 30 - - 50 80
KWOK Ming Fai FHE 30 - - 50 80
180 - 6 300 486
For the year ended HE-T-T4=R
315t March, 2020 S+-ALEE
Executive directors: HIES:
WONG Yun Kuen BRE 30 = 3 50 83
CHENG Wai Lun, Andrew BiER 30 - 3 50 83
Independent non-executive BUFNTES
directors:
CHAN Chung Yee, Alan BRE 30 = = 50 80
FUNG Lewis Hung Jitig 30 = = 50 80
TANG Hon Bui, Ronald HER 30 - = 50 80
KWOK Ming Fai* BHRE 10 - <& ——
= —x D

m\ * Appointed on 1% December, 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
(a) The remuneration of the directors of the Company for the
years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020 are as follows:
(continued)

No directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2020: Nil).

During the years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

(b) Four (2020: Four) of the five highest paid individuals were
directors of the Company, whose emoluments are included in
Note 14(a).

Details of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(excluding directors of the Company) are:

RE P BHRRMEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

14, EENaREEEMNE (£Z)

(a)

ARREENEHE_ZE-_—Fh_-ZF
“EFE=A=+—HIFEZHEH
BT : (48)

ARERAVEEECRELRERET
e (ZZE_ZF : £) -

HEZZ-_—4F=A=+—HKZ=Z
—TFE=A=+—HILLFE £5HE
TARRAZBEZNAEMMSE - EARS
WEMBHMBARE B E 2 2B
REBEBAE -

FEZeFHALH HE(ZE=F
F:MR)AEARAEE  HEZHME
BN E14(a) °

IERRFHAL (TEREARAE
B)ZMEFHE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

F#ET FET

Basic salaries B 3 B 520 520
Retirement benefits contributions RIREF R 18 18
538 538

During the years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Analysis of the emoluments of five highest paid individuals
(excluding directors of the Company) by number of

BE_T-—F=fB=+—-HBEK=-Z
—EF=A=t+—ALFE A58
0 2K [7) T 4 B = 3 B A 32 55 (4T B
G ERRSIEEMBHINBEAEE
B RENIERBEBRBE -

IEERFMAL (TEREARAE
F)BEANBEMEBEDHTEIN AT :

2021 2020

Y/,

FET TE

e
HK$°000 HK$'000 7///:’(///4
—

e
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RE P BHRRMEE

BE_T-_—F=A=+—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

15. INCOME TAX CREDIT 15. Fi3HiEK &%

(a) Tax credit in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and (a) HEBEmRRREMEZEKZRZME
other comprehensive income represents: T eE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Deferred tax credit (Note 23) EEHBERSE (H:723) (191) (489)

On 218t March, 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28" March, 2018
and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had been made as
the Group has no assessable profits for the years ended 31
March, 2021 and 2020.

R-ZZE-—NE=Zf=+—8 FBY
FEERB(CE—LERBK (B (F
75 EOIER) (TRBIER]D) - 5 A
FISBMARS - GRERR_F—N
FZAZHTNBAEEZER IRZ
BRHEZ® BREMNSHARH - &
EREEEBBIRS 5% K5 E
7 82,000,000 7T & 4 18 - I #
1£16.5% 1 Fi = 3t #8 182,000,000
TR 8 FIBANTIIE - TRAEFGEHM
RHIERNEEE RGN G EER
16.5% M & —H X B MFHIA -

HRAREBEZE-ZS-_—FKR=-%=
ZE=ZA=+—BItFETERZER
A B EREERERELE
AR o

T =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

RE P BHRRMEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

15. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 15. FIEHiiKeE (&)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit and the Group’s (b) FEBREREALE @B ERIEE
accounting loss at the statutory income tax rate is set out ERENETE 28k
below:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Loss before taxation B 750 Al S 48 (8,889) (45,004)
Tax at the statutory income LUEE T35 %£16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% SEZHIE (1,467) (7,426)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERMBA 2 52 (568) (866)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A 0Bk 2 Fi 5 57 2 1,724 6,972
Tax effect on unrecognised AEREREE L RBETE
temporary differences - (489)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERZAFEAIEERE
not recognised IR & 120 1,320
Income tax credit 5% (191) (489)
16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE

The basic loss per share is based on the Group’s loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$8,698,000
(2020: HK$44,515,000) and 1,271,732,200 (2020: 1,271,732,200)
weighted average number of shares for the purpose of basic loss
per ordinary share for the years ended 31t March, 2021 and 2020.

Basic loss per share is the same as diluted loss per share as the
Company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years.

BE-_T-—H=fA=+—-HR-_ZT-FTF
AT ALEEENSRERNEBERIR
BEARRAIRREEAERBEFEN
8,698,000/ 7t (=T =T : 44,515,000
BIL) RIRHAB BT 2 L BRGTE Mg
L E1,271,732,2000% (Z T - T 4F :
1,271,732,2008%) °

BREABERASREEHEREARAALD
REMFYEABERINE 2 EBRT
E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% HBERFZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
HE -HEBER
B
HK$'000
T
Cost B
As at 1¢ April, 2019, 315 March, 2020, RZE-NFNA—H ZE=TF=A=+—H"
15t April, 2020 and 31¢ March, 2021 —E_TFMA-BRZFT-—F=A=+—H 6
Accumulated depreciation 2RENE
As at 1¢t April, 2019, 315 March, 2020, RZE-NFNA—H ZE=TF=RA=+—H"
15t April, 2020 and 31¢ March, 2021 —E_TFMA-BRZTE=-_—F=A=+—H 6
Carrying amount REE

At 315t March, 2020 and 31t March, 2021 R-ZE_-_Z&=fA=+-HK-ZE--&=F=+—H -

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR 18. R AFERNEREIIESMHKEE

LOSS
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BB ETRAZES -
at fair value (Note i) RNTESIER (Brati) 99,852 91,165
Unlisted equity securities at fair value FETRAZES
(Notes ii and iii) RNTESBR (B atiiRiii) 1,450 12,635
101,302 103,800
Market value of listed equity securities BEELEMRABS 2 TE

(Note (i) (BtEE(i) 99,548 91,165
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

The fair value of the listed equity securities (excluded suspended
trading securities) are determined based on the quoted market
closing price available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31s March, 2021, the fair value of suspended trading securities
listed in Hong Kong amounting to approximately HK$304,000
was reference to the valuation carried by a firm of independent
professional valuers. The fair value of suspended trading securities
listed in Hong Kong was valued by using market approach.

The market value of listed equity securities are determined based on
the quoted market closing price available on the Stock Exchange at
the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of unlisted equity securities were arrived on the basis
of valuation carried out by a firm of independent professional valuers.
For the year ended 31t March, 2021, the fair value of the business
valuation of unlisted equity securities was valued by using market
approach (2020: the fair value of the business valuation of unlisted
equity securities was valued by using market approach and the
put option value of unlisted equity securities was valued by using
binomial model).

During the year ended 31¢ March, 2021, Loyal Grace Investments
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed its
16.67% entire equity interest of Diamond Motto Limited (“Diamond
Motto”) with carrying amount of approximately HK$9,105,000 and
the amount due from Diamond Motto with gross carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,590,000 to Shen You Holdings Limited (“Shen
You”), a company which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, for a consideration of 16,852,711 shares of Shen You (the
“Consideration Shares”). As at 9" February, 2021, being the date
of completion, the market value of the Consideration Shares was
approximately HK$6,404,000. The Group recognised realised loss on
financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$5,291,000.

RE P BHRRMEE

HE_T-_—F=F=+—HILFE

18. BAVERBRERIKVBEE (£F)

i

(i)

(i)

(iii)

EHBRAES (TEEEFEEEES) A

FETIIR IR R & H R X AT 35 R T B
B -
i

E-—F=A=+—H &BFELD
FEEZEFN QT (EXR304,000/
T W TRRB Y F R EM A R PTET
MEEMEE -EFELTNEEEERRE
FHATEDRATISE -

EHRAE ST ERE RS HRE A
HRTEETE

FELETRAZEFNATEDBEBLEE
REMARMETHEENEE - R-F
Z—F=ZA=+—H FLTRAEHFH
EBAEATFEDRATEE(ZE-F
F o ETRABSFNEBFERFET
R 5E R IE ETIRAE 5000 ) H
BEBB-IAAERLGE)

RZE-_—F=ZRA=+—-HFEH
M ARA% &M B AR AlLoyal Grace
Investments Limited H & HE#F A H
Diamond Motto Limited ([ Diamond
Motto ) 16.67% 2 BBk #E - HRE B EL
£39,105,0007% 7T} FEY 7008 - HIRE (B
B4 /2,590,0008 T4 FTHREEZERAR
NAE (TERE]) - &2 A RGO R Al
¥R ET - REA16,852,711REAERR
(TREBRH]) N-—ZE-_—%F-FAB"
BRZTEKBEH WRERODMEL S
6,404,000/ 7T ° A& EE R TERNERR
FIBR 2 B A E 2 BB E1E 455,291,000
WBTT ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM INVESTEE COMPANIES 19. EWREDRFE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Amounts due from investee companies FEUIEE A RIFIB 9,796 12,386
Less: Allowance for ECL B BHEEFERE (9,796) (10,111)
- 2,275
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms JEUWIRE A RIRIE TR BEIE - REF B
of repayment. Details of ECL assessment are set out in Note 8(a). MRBIETEERY - HHREEBEEET
il Z FEBE KT FE8(a)
20. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 20. FEUWEEE A B FIE
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms JEWRIETNRBEA  REF B MERAEE
of repayment. Details of ECL assessment are set out in Note 8(a). TEXH BHEEFEEEGETGLZFE
SR KTEE8(a) °
21. OTHER INVESTMENT 21, HitRE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Silver bullion B} 1,083 639
The silver bullion is carried at fair value through profit or loss at the BN ERRE A TFERNBREERETR -
end of reporting period.
The fair value of the silver bullion is determined based on the A7 AFEEREREH RN TR S

market closing price at the end of the reporting period. WMEBEETE -




UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BB REER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. BERRTER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FE FHET
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTEH 1,772 5,745
Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank RZEZ—FR_T-_TF=A=+—H
deposit rates as at 315 March, 2021 and 2020. The bank balances BTHESRENEABRTEINENZH
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of FEAB  RITELTF N E L HEOF
default. LMEERFHRIT
All of the Group’s cash and bank balances are denominated in AEBRBHEE RBITEBRI B TEE -
HKS.
23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23. EEHIE
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE
Unrealised gain
on financial
assets at FVTPL
BAFLEREREZ
BREEZ
REB W=
HK$'000
T
As at 15t April, 2019 RZZE-NFMA—A 680
Credited to profit or loss FARERE (489)
As at 31t March, 2020 and RZZEZZEF=A=1+—HK
1t April, 2020 ZE-ZFFMA—H 191
Credited to profit or loss FARERE (191)
As at 31°t March, 2021 R=E=--%=A=+—H -

—V—

_
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31° March, 2021 HE_Z-_—F=A=t+—HILFE
23. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 23. ELBIE(Z)
Deferred tax assets not recognised AERCELERBEE
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the ITHEEARERZEEREBEE

following items:

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Tax losses HIEER 10,726 10,606
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused RIREER - NEE A A8 AR R ER
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$65,008,000 (2020: A2 R B 5T 54 TE B9 48 965,008,000/
HK$64,278,000) available for offsetting against future taxable T (T T4 : 64,278,0008 L) ° A -
profits. However, no deferred tax asset has been recognised due R ARRETE R R R 2 s I 50R + &5t £
to unpredictability profit streams. The tax losses do not expire A B REREERIEEE o BIFRTHE -
under current tax legislation. HABETZEE -
24. SHARE CAPITAL 24, AR
The movements of shares capital of the Company are as follows: RN ARESEFDT :
Number Nominal value
of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ERREE EEREE
HK$000
FET
Authorised: ERE
As at 1¢t April, 2019, 315t March, 2020, RZE—NEMA—B -
1st April, 2020 and 315 March, —ZEZ-ZEF=A=+—H
2021, at HK$0.01 each —E-EFMA—BHR
—EZ-—4%=zZA=t+—H
FRE(E0.01B T 2,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR:
As at 1¢t April, 2019, 31st March, 2020, RZZE—NFEWA—HB -
18t April, 2020 and 31t March, 2021 —E-TF=/[=1+—A"

—E-TFMA-HK
—E-_—F=fF=+—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

25. NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE 25. BREEFE
The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the net FREEFETIREE EFE104,686,000
assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$104,686,000 B (ZE T F 1 113,384,0008 78) K&
(2020: HK$113,384,000) and 1,271,732,200 (2020: 1,271,732,200) RZE-_—&F=ZA=+—BAEI2%17T
ordinary shares in issue as at 315t March, 2021. @ M%1,271,732, 200 (Z & —F F :

1,271,732,2000%) 51 & -

26. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY 26. AEEFAECETEREZHE
THE GROUP
Particulars of investment held by the Group as at 31¢ March, RELTRUABNERBZAKRER-F
2021 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as —FZA=T-BARBZRAFBWT
follows:
Dividend
Proportion Fair values of Disposal Realised  Unrealised received
of investee’s listed/unlisted cost/carrying gainl(loss) gain/(loss) during  Net assets
capital equity Disposal amountof  fortheyear  for the year the year  attributable to
Name of investee companies owned Cost securities  consideration  investment (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 9) the investment
B8z R i/ ] EERER EERRR £ )
) RE&NT - FLakrR% BEZHE  RE/(BB)  hE/(EB) ehke RER
RENEER BRLA A ZATE HERE  AA/EEE (i) (hi10) (29) HEERE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TEL TEL TEL TET TET TEL TEL TEL

Listed equity investment

LIRARE

PCCW Limited 0.0750% 42,708 25,405 - - - 638 1855 2417

EHAMERAT

Bank of China Limited 0.0017% 17929 13,616 - - - (46) 861 40,007

hERTRAERAR

Kwong Man Kee Group Limited 5.0005% 9,421 12,751 - - - (1,350) - 4820

BEBERAR

MTR Corporation Limited 0.0030% 7,920 8,094 - - - 965 - 5,261

BRERARAT

Shen You Holdings Limited 1.6853% 6,404 1,752 - - - 1348 - 769

REARERAT

Bank of Communications 0.0016% 6,140 5,940 1,167 (1154) 13 188 381 16,845
Co,, Ltd.

RARRAERAR

Gemilang International Limited 1.9061% 4,154 4312 - - - (1,677) - 2,950

ZRARERAR

-CONTROL Holdings Limited 0.6000% 2112 3,300 - - - 1263 % 849

BREERERAR

CK Hutchision Holdings Limited 0.0013% 4590 3,098 - - - 478 122 8,169

%P_\\ SN ;
= —
74
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
26. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY 26. XEERAZIEREZFE(E)
THE GROUP (continued)
Particulars of investment held by the Group as at 31s' March, BELMRUTNERELASER-F
2021 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as Z—F=ZA=T—BREZREFENT :
follows: (continued) (&)
Dividend
Proportion Fair values of Disposal Realised  Unrealised received
of investee’s listed/unlisted cost/carrying gainf(loss) ~ gain/(loss) during  Net assets
capital equity Disposal amountof  fortheyear for the year the year attributable to
Name of investee companies owned Cost securities  consideration  investment (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 9) the investment
%52 L7 ] FRCRR FEARR Em )
\ 5803  RLEmAEE REZME  WE/(BE) W/(B®)  EMRE  RER
RENFIER BALH A ZAYE HERE  AA/REE (hi#10) (i) (i9) HEEFE

HK$ 000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§'000
TEL TET TET TR TEL TEL TEL TEL

Listed equity investment
(continued)

LIRTRE (8)

Other listed equity investment
Ay FRRARE 9) (2,701) 450

4 (848) 3,6%

Unlisted equity investment

FLRIZE

Guangdong Jingyeng
Aquaculiure Gompany Limited
EREFKERRBRLT 1.60% 420 1450 - - - (2,080) - 4130

Diamond Motto 0% - - 3814 (9,10) (5,291) - - -

(5.291) (2,080) =




UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BB REER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
26. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY 26. ARERFACEIEREZHE (HA)
THE GROUP (continued) )
Particulars of investment held by the Group as at 31 March, BREEMAUTANZRE ZARER
e = i I LR S
2020 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as —ECREZAST - RARAZBRARR
follows: m
Dividend
Proportion Fair values of Realised Unrealised received
of investee’s listed/unlisted Disposal gain/(loss) loss during Net assets
capital equity Disposal cost of for the year for the year the year attributable to
Name of investee companies owned Cost securities  consideration investment (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note 9 the investment
iz L/ EERER EERER R
RENAE FLTRAES te  he/(EB) ] Bhike RER
RELAZE ALt oA LATE HERE REHA (Wit Wit W) FEERE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 HK§ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

7L Tr Tr Tr Tér Tn 7L 7T Tr

Listed equity investment

LKARE

PCCW Limited 0.0750% 42708 24,767 - - - (3.53) 1816 13,504
ENENERAT

Kwong Man Kee Group Limited 5.0005% 9421 14101 - - - (2.261) 188 3,984
BasERRAT

Bank of China Limited 0.0016% 17929 13,662 1853 (1,806) 4 (3.025) 864 33812
RRERHERAT

MR Corporation Limited 0.0029% 7919 1129 - - - (790) - 5399
FEAAERAA

Gemiang International Limited 1.9061% 4154 5989 - - - (2.39) 143 2,604
YRERERAA

Yi Hua Holdings Limited 2.6495% 1497 5,183 - - - (14751) - NIA
HEERARAT

Bank of Communications Co,, Lid. 0.0013% 523 4750 - - - (482) - 11,806
RRERHERAT

JBB Bulders International Limited 0.9268% 2180 2740 6,433 (7,105) (672) (2.754) 89 2,288
CK Hutchision Holdings Limited 0.0010% 4,063 2,092 - - - (1,206) 126 6,192
RINZEZERAA

China Merchants Land Limited 0.0308% 8490 1827 - - - (181) 120 9,715
HHRENARAT

Other listed equity investment 69 (6.407) 543

o FilARE

(556) (37,761) 3,869

7 '

e

7. = =



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

26. PARTICULARS OF SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD BY
THE GROUP (continued)

Particulars of investment held by the Group as at 31t March,
2020 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as
follows: (continued)

Annual Report 2021 4

RE P BHRRMEE

BE_T-_—F=A=+—HIFE

26. ARERACTEREZHE ()

R LR ENERE Y A% ER
“E-FEZACt+-AREZRARE
mT : (%)

Dividend
Proportion Fair values of Realised Unrealised received

of investee’s listed/unlisted Disposal gain/(loss) loss during Net assets

capital equity Disposal cost of for the year for the year the year  attributable to

Name of investee companies owned Cost securities  consideration investment (Note 10) (Note 10) (Note'9)  the investment
1 i/ EEEER EERER £

RELHE FLahags tE W&/ (BB fig BURE REE

RENTER Aith s ITE HERE REAEK (i) W) (Hi29) {FEERE

HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS 000
7T Tr TEn Tr

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HK§000
T TEn 7T Tr Tr

Unlisted equity investment

EETRARE
Diamond Motio 16.67% 11,667 9,105
Guangdong Jingyeng Aquaculure

Company Limited 1.60% 4220 3530
ERSEKERBARLAT

For listed equity investment, net assets attributable to the
investment are based on latest published financial information
of the relevant investment. For unlisted equity investment, net
assets attributable to the investment are based on latest financial

statements or management accounts of the relevant investment.

- - (2441 - 16%
. - (1638 - 3%
: (4129

RETERAREME RERBEHEE
FEDNHBARERB TR ZEHMHE
BAERE -RELTRARENS  RE
RARMEEFENARBRERA 2K
MRBRRAEERAKIE -




UBA INVESTMENTS LIMITED BB REER A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
27. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BERBEBALRS
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its RAFE  ANEBEBUTHEHALRS

related parties

2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000
Kzt FET FET
Investment management fee paid to TREEEREBTEEEE
Upbest Assets Management Limited BRAF (a) 1,621 2,075
Performance fee payable to ENRBBETER
Upbest Assets Management Limited EEFRAF (a) - -
Brokerage commission paid to ITREERAETEEES
Upbest Securities Company Limited BRAF (b) 20 134
Handling fee for dividend collection IRBREBRFEETERE
paid to Upbest Securities Company EHFABRAA
Limited (c) 20 20
Commission paid to IRNRAeTERSEERAA
Upbest Bullion Company Limited (d) - =
Interest paid to Upbest Investment IRMETERREER QA
Company Limited (e) - 402
Interest paid to Upbest Gold and IRFMETERSBES
Silver Trading Limited BRAT (f) - -
Storage fee paid to Upbest Bullion IREEBTERSEERAA
Company Limited (9) 6 6
Custodian fee paid to OCBC INEEETERBKT
Wing Hang Bank Limited RITER A A (h) 60 60
Short-term lease expenses to IREBHEERYT T
Champion Assets Limited BEER AR (i) 264 264

= N S

—V—

_




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

27. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
During the year, the Group had the following transactions with its
related parties (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Company and Upbest Assets Management Limited (“UAML") as
investment manager had entered into the investment management
agreement dated on 25" January, 2019 (“Investment Management
Agreement”) and agreed that UAML provided assets management
services to the Company for a period of three years commencing
from 1%t April, 2019 to 31%t March, 2022. Pursuant to the Investment
Management Agreement, monthly investment management fee is
payable by the Company in advance and amounts to 1.5% per
annum of the net asset value as at the immediately preceding
valuation date on the basis of the actual number of days in the
relevant calendar month over a year of 365 days. In addition to the
management fee, provided that the net asset value as at the end of
the relevant financial year exceeds the higher (the “High Watermark”)
of (i) the net asset value as at the end of the reference year; and (i)
the net asset value as at the end of the most recent financial year
after the reference year and in which the performance fee was paid.
The Company will pay UAML the performance fee for the relevant
financial year in Hong Kong dollars equal to 20% of the amount by
which the net asset value as at the end of the relevant financial year
exceed the High Watermark.

The annual cap for the investment management fee and performance
fee for the financial years ending 31t March, 2020, 2021 and 2022
are HK$8,600,000, HK$9,100,000 and HK$9,600,000 respectively.
It is expected that the total of investment management fee and
performance fee will be less than HK$10,000,000 per annum and
all the applicable percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Investment Management
Agreement are less than 25%. Thus, transaction contemplated under
the Investment Management Agreements is considered to be a de-
minimis transaction for the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the
Listing Rules.

There was no performance fee for the financial years ended 31
March, 2021 and 2020. The investment management fee has been
included under administrative and other operating expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

27. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

The Company and four of its subsidiaries and Upbest Securities
Company Limited (“USCL") have separately entered into the
securities brokerage supplemental agreements dated on 25"
January, 2019 (“2019 Securities Brokerage Supplemental
Agreements”) in relation to the provision securities brokerage
services and agreed that the original agreement will be extended
for a period of three years commencing from 1t April, 2019 to 31
March, 2022. It is expected that the annual brokerage commission
will be less than HK$3,000,000 per annum and all the applicable
percentage ratios (as defined under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules)
are less than 5%. Thus, transaction contemplated under the 2019
Securities Brokerage Supplemental Agreements is considered to be
a de-minimis transaction for the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of
the Listing Rules.

Brokerage commission fee is charged at 0.25% (2020: 0.25%), the
prevailing market rate, on the value of the transactions.

Handling fee for dividend collection is charged at minimum of HK$30
or 0.5% per transaction amount, which is higher.

Bullion commission is charged at a range from US$10 to US$50
(2020: US$10 to US$50) per transaction.

The Company and two of its subsidiaries had separately entered into
financial assistance supplemental agreements dated on 25" January,
2019 (“Financial Assistance Supplemental Agreements”) with Upbest
Investment Company Limited (“UICL") in relation to the provision
of securities margin financing service. According to the Financial
Assistance Supplemental Agreements, the respective relevant
original agreement is further extended for a period of three years
commencing from 1t April, 2019 to 31t March, 2022. The agreements
are subject to renewal by written supplemental agreements between
the contracting parties. The securities margin financing services
interest rate is charged at 4.25% (2020: 4.25%) above prime rate per
annum inclusive of custodian fee; and the provision of Initial Public
Offering (“IPO”) financing at an interest rate from 0.2% to 1.5% (2020:
0.2% to 1.5%) per annum above the borrowing costs of UICL. For
the financial year ended 31t March, 2021 interest for the securities
margin accounts was charged at 9.5% (2020: 9.5%) per annum. No
IPO financing interest paid for the years ended 31% March, 2021 and

e MR MEE

BE 2 —=A=1+—HItEE

27.

BERBHALRS (&)

Wit - (&)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

27. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(f)

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into the precious metal
supplemental agreement dated 25" January, 2019 (“Precious Metal
Supplemental Agreement”) with Upbest Gold and Silver Trading
Limited (“UGS”) in relation to the provision of precious metal margin
financing service by UGS to the subsidiary. According the Precious
Metal Supplemental Agreement, the subsidiary and UGS agreed
that the term for the Precious Metal Financial Assistance Agreement
will be extended for a period of three years commencing from 1=t
April, 2019 to 31t March, 2022 and is subject to renewal by written
supplemental agreement between the contract parties.

The interest rate for the precious metal financing service was
from 0.25% to 0.50% (2020: 0.25% to 0.50%) per annum above
the borrowing costs of UGS for call position. In respect of put
position, the interest rate would be 0.25% to 0.50% (2020: 0.25%
to 0.50%) per annum on top of the borrowing costs of UGS (if any)
provided that if UGS would receive any interest from its supplier(s),
the subsidiary may set off such financing fee against the interest
received by UGS from its supplier(s). For avoidance of doubt, any
remaining interest received by UGS from its supplier(s) after such
setoff in respect of such put position will be paid to the subsidiary.
No interest for the precious metal financing service was paid for the
years ended 318 March, 2021 and 2020.

The annual cap regarding the securities and bullion margin financial
assistance is HK$64,000,000 for each of the financial years ending 31¢
March, 2020, 2021 and 2022. These continuing connected transactions
were approved on the extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders
held on 26" March, 2019.

(9)

Storage fee for precious metals trading was charged at US$2 (2020:
US$2) per day.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31* March, 2021

27. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(h)

—
=

Pursuant to a custodian agreement dated 22" December, 1999,
between the Group and a custodian, the custodian agrees to provide
securities custodian services to the Group including the safe custody
of the Group’s securities and the settlement of the securities of the
Group, the collection of dividends and other entitlements on behalf
of the Group. The appointment of the custodian commenced on the
date of commencement of trading of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange and will continue in force until it is terminated by
either party giving a written notice to the other party at any time. The
custodian is regarded as a connected person of the Company under
Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules, but the custodian fee falls below the
de-minimis threshold under Rule 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has entered into a tenancy agreement with Champion
Assets Limited since 1¢t January, 2011. On 1%t April, 2020, the
tenancy agreement was renewed and commenced on 1%t April, 2020
with a term of one year (2020: one year). The total rent paid during
the year ended 31% March, 2021 amounted to HK$264,000 (2020:
HK$264,000). The transactions were carried out at an amount agreed
by both parties. The entire issued share capital of Fung Fai Growth
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Group, is owned by a trust of
which the discretionary objects are family members of Mr. Cheng Wai
Lun, Andrew, including Mr. Cheng Kai Ming, Charles has beneficial
interest in Champion Assets Limited.

Fung Fai Growth Limited, an investment holding company, holds
approximately 26.74% of the Company. CCAA Group Limited, an
investment company, holds approximately 74.29% (2020: 74.29%)
interest in Upbest Group Limited. The ultimate beneficial owner of
Fung Fai Growth Limited and CCAA Group Limited is Cheng's Family
Trust. UAML, USCL, Upbest Bullion Company Limited and UICL are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Upbest Group Limited, a company
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The above transactions were carried out in the normal course
of the Group’s business on terms mutually agreed between the
parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 28. AN EEHAMRE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B KRR - -
Interests in subsidiaries N IEPNGIPA 1 101,349 104,542
101,349 104,542
Current assets REBEE
Amount due from a related company FE U — ] B R Rl RIB 34 24
Financial assets at FVTPL BERATERERERSIER
M EE 311 297
Cash and bank balances e RIBITHEHR 520 438
865 759
Current liability nEBaE
Accruals FANE- i (277) (272)
Net current assets REEEFE 588 487
Total assets less current liability BEEERADER 101,937 105,029
Net assets EEFHE 101,937 105,029
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital &N 12,717 12,717
Reserves (Note (a)) & (Hfit(a) 89,220 92,312
Total equity s 101,937 105,029
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue BBBRREEEFER S —F~H

by the board of directors on 22" June, 2021 and are signed on its
behalf by:

WONG Yun Kuen
Executive Director
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 29.
(continued)
Note:

(a) Reserves of the Company

AREHBRREK ()
Wit -

(a) AQFHE

Contributed

Share surplus  Accumulated
premium (Note) losses Total
BRI RS
B RE (Kizt) ZREEB et
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
As at 15t April, 2019 R-ZE-hENA—H 107,217 4,188 (15,950) 95,455
Loss for the year REEEE - \ \ = \ \ (3,143) \ \ (3,143)
Total comprehensive loss AEEREBEAE
for the year - - (3,143) (3,143)
As at 31t March, 2020 and NZT_TF
1t April, 2020 =R=t—Hk
—T-ZFWA—H 107,217 4,188 (19,093) 92,312
Loss for the year AEEEE - | | - | | (3,092) | | (3,092)
Total comprehensive loss for  ARNFE 2 HEEEER
the year - - (3,092) (3,092)
As at 31¢t March, 2021 R=B=-F
=f=t+-H 107,217 4,188 (22,185) 89,220
Note: Biqz -

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company
and the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company
during IPO reorganisation.
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For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE
29. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 29. TEMBAAFE
Subsidiaries of the Company as at 31t March, 2021 and 2020 were RZE-_—FR_T-_ZTF=F=+—H
as follows: ZARTMBARMAT :
Issued and Percentage of
fully paid equity interest and
ordinary voting power held
share capital BFERER
Place of BRTR REEBDLE
Name of subsidiaries incorporation BREREZ Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
WERDEHE 2t 1 B 32 3t B EERA B B TZER
% %
Best Idea Development Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 100 - Investment holding
EEELHE ETIT REER
Blaze Light Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 100 - Investment holding
EEELHE ETIT REER
Cyber Features Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 - 100  Investment holding
EERELHS ETIT REER
Effort Assets Limited Samoa US$1 100 - Investment holding
BED ETIT REER
Flavor Luck Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EERELHS ETIT REER
Loyal Grace Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
BYREBRRA EERELHS ETIT REER
Lucky Joy Investments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EERELHS ETIT REER
Marine Assets Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 100 - Investment holding
EEELHS ETIT REER
Profit Mind Group Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
EERELHS ETIT REER
Rich Express Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
LERRERAA EEEAHS ETIT REER
Super Idea International Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
RBRAES ETIT REZR

UBA Development Limited British Virgin Islands
RBRAES

—
m UBA Financial Trading Limited Hong Kong
\ N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS R M mRMEE

For the year ended 31% March, 2021 HE-Z-_—F=A=+—HLFE

29. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 29. FEMBARFE (&)

Subsidiaries of the Company as at 315t March, 2021 and 2020 were R-E-_—FR-_ZE-_TF=F=+—H
as follows: (continued) ZARARIMBARMT : (£)
Issued and Percentage of
fully paid equity interest and
ordinary voting power held
share capital BFERER

Place of BEITR REEBDLE
Name of subsidiaries incorporation BERRZ Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
=N R AL 3 B ERRE E# B TEER

% %

UBA Technologies Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 100 - Investment holding

ERRLHES ETIT RERR
UBA Venture Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

ERRAES ETIT RERR
Water Resource Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$H1 100 - Investment holding

ERRAHES ETIT RERR
Water Resource Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100  Investment holding

BE BT RERR
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the ZEHBARERNEE ERERERNEEE]
end of the reporting period or at any time during the year. EEATEER N REEZERES -

30. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 30. MEHBSEH

There is no significant event took place subsequent to the end of RNiFEH KRBT ER AT ERESG -

the reporting period.

31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 3. TEFRERNF

During the year ended 31% March, 2021, as the consideration of BHE_T-_—F=-A=1+—HLLFE A
the disposal of unlisted equity investment and related amount HEEETRERE REWEE A RRIE
due from an investee company, the Group received listed shares HRE - NEBEWE A TELD A6,404,000
consideration with fair value of approximately HK$6,404,000, which BT ETRORE  ZREQEARA
was classified as financial assets at FVTPL. The disposal was TENREBREIRNMGEEE - ZBHE
completed on 9" February, 2021. Details of the disposal were set BERZZE-_—F_ANHEK -ZBELE
out in Note 18(iii). B 7 15 BN BT R 18(li) ©

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated BREAMBREANEIAREEN  HE

.-~ financial statements, there is no other major non-cash transactions TEC—ER-E-_ZEE=A=+—HIt

= g \\\.’\\\~ o o5 At o~
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